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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I bring this

          3  Committee to order.  We are joined this morning by

          4  Council Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx, who is

          5  a member of this Committee, Council Member John Liu

          6  from Queens, who's also a member of this Committee.

          7  We're delighted that Council Member Christine Quinn

          8  from Manhattan is here with us, as well as Council

          9  Member Alan Gerson, who is the author of this bill.

         10                 This is our second hearing on the

         11  Dignity For All Students Act.  The first one we held

         12  was on October 23rd, 2003.  At this hearing we asked

         13  for data from the Department of Education about the

         14  scope of harassment at New York City public schools.

         15    We were told then by Van Tucker that he didn't

         16  have that information.  That, in itself, was

         17  somewhat dismaying, that there seemed to be

         18  virtually no information about how commonplace

         19  harassment at our schools, how common it is, even

         20  though from principals and teachers and students, as

         21  well as parents, we heard that this was a

         22  significant problem.

         23                 While the issue of harassment and

         24  bullying has not gotten on the Mayor's agenda,

         25  obviously school safety has and there was a rather
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          2  remarkable set of developments where the Mayor

          3  announced a series of reforms when he first took

          4  office and then I guess last January announced, made

          5  a remarkable admission that I, for one, praised him

          6  for, which was that the buck stops here and the

          7  problem was not yet solved.  Unfortunately, his

          8  solution to this problem, I think, had some

          9  significant weaknesses.  He created the 12 impact

         10  schools, flooded them with police officers at the

         11  cost of millions of dollars.  It's not clear how

         12  those 12 schools were chosen and whether solving the

         13  underlying problem was going to occur as a result of

         14  the presence of overwhelming police force.

         15                 I, for one, do believe in the broken

         16  window theory of school safety.  If we let small

         17  incidents of misbehavior go without any response

         18  from authority figures, whether they be teachers,

         19  principals, and of course parents, the next time a

         20  tease becomes an insult, an insult becomes a shove,

         21  a shove becomes a punch, a punch becomes a fight,

         22  becomes a grudge and perhaps a weapon is brought to

         23  school.

         24  This very basic series, sequence of things, seems to

         25  be something that the Mayor and the Administration
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          2  has not completely grasped.

          3                 DASA, the name for the Dignity For

          4  All Students Act, sends an important message as well

          5  as, I believe, will result in concrete improvements.

          6                 DASA requires the Department of

          7  Education to take bullying seriously, to create a

          8  code of conduct that prohibits it and to insist that

          9  the adults in the school take harassment seriously

         10  and put a stop to it.  DASA requires the Department

         11  of Education to tell parents and students what is

         12  expected of them in writing in their native language

         13  each year and then to hold school children to that.

         14  DASA also requires the Department of Education to

         15  publicize the results.  This has been an ongoing

         16  battle, if you will, that the Education Committee

         17  has had with the Department of Education.  We

         18  discovered at a school safety hearing that, although

         19  the school report cards have categories for

         20  information about crime, all of the school report

         21  cards said "not available" when it came to the

         22  actual information. Since then, to the Mayor and the

         23  Chancellor's credit, they have put that information

         24  in the school report cards.

         25                 We would like to see harassment
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          2  included in that list of statistics because parents

          3  and students are not only interested in -- teachers,

          4  for that matter, and principals are not only

          5  interested in sort of high level crimes, they are

          6  just interested in the climate of safety and respect

          7  at a given school.

          8                 DASA also requires some level of

          9  training, some pedagogical staff and school safety

         10  officers so that they understand how to intervene,

         11  how important it is to intervene when incidents of

         12  bullying occur and to prevent incidents of bullying.

         13                 Without further ado, I want to turn

         14  to the author of this bill, Council Member Alan

         15  Gerson, and any other members who would like to make

         16  an opening statement. Council Member Gerson?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         18  very much, Madam Chair.  For too many students the

         19  daily challenge of going to school is not the

         20  challenge of achievement in subject matter, it's not

         21  even the challenge of doing well on the new tests

         22  which we have imposed on students, but for too many

         23  students the most important challenge to them is

         24  basic survival.  Survival with safety and survival

         25  with dignity intact.  For too long, too much of our
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          2  youth culture has been characterized by the pecking

          3  order, by the phenomenon, for whatever reason and

          4  the full range of possible reasons, one group of

          5  students picking on another group of students or on

          6  an individual student.

          7                 For too long, too many teachers have

          8  not been given the support and the resources they

          9  need to counter this phenomenon within the school

         10  and the result is, we will hear testimony, has been

         11  too many lives have been marred and ruined by having

         12  to have run a gauntlet on a daily basis of excessive

         13  taunting, teasing or physical abuse.  Too many lives

         14  have been ruined for those young people who have

         15  been the victims of this unacceptable conduct and

         16  too many lives have been ruined for those young

         17  people, misguided young people, who perpetuate this

         18  conduct.  Bullying is bad for both the bullied and

         19  the bully, but it is certainly not acceptable and

         20  should not be acceptable within the confines of the

         21  school and the yards and the play areas where we

         22  adults have an obligation, a moral and a legal

         23  obligation, to assure the safety and the dignity of

         24  each student.  And it's not a question of the

         25  numbers.  One student bullied is one student too
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          2  many.

          3                 Madam Chair, though, for too long the

          4  powers that be have turned the other way to this

          5  phenomenon, which we know and which they know has

          6  existed.  For too long too many people in charge, or

          7  supposedly in charge of our schools, administering

          8  our schools at the highest levels of the

          9  bureaucracy, have viewed this as a phenomena of

         10  growing up, as something we can do nothing about

         11  and, therefore, we have to accept it.  They have

         12  viewed it as such clearly by their inaction and by

         13  their omission.

         14                 With this bill we send a message from

         15  this City Council on behalf of all of the young

         16  people of our city and all people and their parents

         17  and their teachers and their guidance counsellors

         18  and their administrators and all adults who care

         19  about children that it's time to change the pecking

         20  order.  It's time to make it clear that it ain't

         21  cool to pick on another student, that it's cool to

         22  be nice, to be tolerant and to be welcoming.

         23  Whether the cause is homophobia, whether the cause

         24  is race or religion or whether the cause is physical

         25  characteristics, the way someone looks, or whether
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          2  the cause is just some unidentifiable cause because

          3  a person may, for whatever reason, just not seem to

          4  fit in, whatever the cause, the pecking order of

          5  bullying, picking on kids has no place in the school

          6  system of the City of New York.

          7                 That is what this legislation will do

          8  by its requirement of keeping data.  And we all know

          9  information is the first step to solution by its

         10  requirement of preventative action, from pre- K

         11  through all grades, and by its requirement of an

         12  adequate response when cases of bullying exist.

         13                 In conclusion, Madam Chair, we will

         14  hear testimony from young people and from their

         15  parents.  I want to thank especially all the young

         16  people who are here today and many more will be

         17  joining us in the course of this hearing.  You might

         18  not all be able to testify but your presence here

         19  today sends a message, sends a message as to your

         20  courage and your commitment to make things better,

         21  not only for yourselves but for your peers and for

         22  other young people and for future generations.

         23                 On behalf of all of us, I want to

         24  thank each of you and say how much we admire you for

         25  taking this step, for having the courage to come
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          2  here to this hearing.  That act speaks louder than

          3  any taunt or any other act against you that could

          4  ever be made.  Your being here will make a

          5  difference and you should feel good about yourselves

          6  and the great future that lies ahead for you in part

          7  because you are here.

          8                 We will hear testimony from these

          9  young people and their parents and teachers as to

         10  the impact and the hell which they've had to live

         11  through.  We will hear testimony from expert

         12  psychologists and psychiatrists as to the harm that

         13  this conduct extracts if allowed to continue. I fear

         14  we might hear testimony from the Department of

         15  Education that maybe DASA is not necessary.  Well,

         16  the answer to that is the other testimony you will

         17  hear because the fact that this conduct has gone on

         18  for so long speaks for itself that we need to do

         19  something new and we need to take action along the

         20  lines which DASA suggests.  We could certainly work

         21  with the Department to come up with the best

         22  possible approach, but it will be unacceptable to

         23  say that doing nothing or just tweaking some other

         24  existing policy or regulation which thus far has not

         25  been adequately effective, is the answer.  We must
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          2  work together to deal with this problem.

          3                 In conclusion, Madam Chair, you said

          4  I was the author of this bill.  The truth it it's

          5  the young people and the school community, the

          6  teachers and the parents who care about this issue

          7  who are the authors of this bill.  We have just been

          8  the conduit to put it forward.  I want to thank you

          9  for your commitment and for your leadership in

         10  bringing this to this hearing.  Our city should know

         11  that we are better off because we have Eva Moskowitz

         12  as the Chair of our Education Committee.  This

         13  hearing would not be possible but for her

         14  commitment, and I want to also especially thank my

         15  neighbor, both in district and also here at this

         16  hearing, to my right, though usually she's to my

         17  left but that's a different issue --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Equal.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  There you go.

         20    But my the person who has exhibited tremendous

         21  courage and leadership on the ongoing quest for

         22  human rights and dignity for all people on all

         23  issues.  That's Council Member Christine Quinn.  So

         24  thank you all very much.  Without further ado, we

         25  should let the hearing begin.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  We've been

          3  joined by Steve Allinger, the Executive Director of

          4  the Office of Intergovernmental Affairs from the

          5  Department of Education. Welcome.  Thank you for

          6  being here.  Please just restate your name and

          7  affiliation for the record.  Thank you.  The light

          8  has to be off.

          9                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Thank you.  Good

         10  morning, Chair Moskowitz and members of the

         11  Education Committee.  My name is Steve Allinger and

         12  I'm the Executive Director of the Office of

         13  Intergovernmental Affairs for the New York City

         14  Department of Education.  I appreciate the

         15  opportunity to comment on behalf of Chancellor Klein

         16  on Intro. 188-A, the Dignity for All Students Act.

         17                 Mayor Bloomberg and Chancellor Klein,

         18  through the Children First Reforms, continue to

         19  demonstrate an ongoing commitment to changing the

         20  culture of our schools. This includes strong

         21  policies that foster cooperation and support to

         22  ensure a safe and healthy environment in and around

         23  our school buildings for our students and staff.  A

         24  safe and orderly learning environment makes

         25  everything else in the school possible.  It allows
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          2  teachers to devote their full energy and talents to

          3  teaching and enables students to concentrate and

          4  focus on learning.

          5                 As we all know, the New York City

          6  public education school system has the most

          7  ethnically and culturally diverse student population

          8  in the nation.  In celebration of this fact, the

          9  Department embraces and promotes the cultural

         10  diversity among students and school staff.  Indeed,

         11  it is the policy of the Department to provide

         12  educational and employment opportunities without

         13  regard to race, color, religion, creed, ethnicity,

         14  national origin, alienage and citizenship status,

         15  age, marital status, disability, sexual orientation,

         16  gender, prior record of arrest, conviction and to

         17  maintain an environment free of unlawful harassment,

         18  sexual harassment and retaliation for individuals

         19  who use these procedures or for filing a complaint.

         20                 Recognizing its large and diverse

         21  student population, the Department has long-

         22  standing policies prohibiting harassment and

         23  discrimination on the basis of protected classes

         24  cited above.

         25                 In 1985, the then Board of Education
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          2  adopted a policy directing the Chancellor to take

          3  steps to eliminate practices which "foster attitudes

          4  and/or actions leading to discrimination against

          5  students, parents or school personnel on the basis

          6  of race, color, religion, national origin, gender,

          7  age, sexual orientation and/or handicapping

          8  condition."

          9                 In 1993, the Board adopted a policy

         10  against bias and discrimination in all facilities

         11  and at all levels of the New York City school system

         12  affirming its policy against harassment,

         13  discrimination and bigotry.

         14                 Our commitment to reducing or

         15  eliminating discriminatory practices and harassment

         16  remains the priority and it's consistent with our

         17  efforts to ensure compliance with all Federal, State

         18  and City laws.  This is demonstrated in the relevant

         19  enforcement policies outlined in Chancellor's

         20  regulations and personnel memoranda governing such

         21  areas as procedures for filing complaints of alleged

         22  discrimination or harassment, student- to- student

         23  sexual harassment, student discipline procedures and

         24  reasonable accommodations under the Americans with

         25  Disabilities Act.
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          2                 Additionally, the citywide standards

          3  of discipline and intervention measures, "the

          4  Discipline Code", provides notice to students and

          5  parents of the standards of behavior with which all

          6  students are expected to comply by outlining

          7  prohibited conduct and the range of permissible

          8  disciplinary measures for such conduct.  The Code is

          9  sent to all schools and principals then send them

         10  home with students.  It is also posted on the

         11  Department's website.

         12                 Consistent with the intent of the

         13  proposed legislation to prohibit harassment, the

         14  Discipline Code specifically prohibits such behavior

         15  as "engaging in sexual harassment, engaging in

         16  intimidating and bullying behavior to compel a

         17  student or staff member to do something, engaging in

         18  verbal or physical conduct that threatens another

         19  with harm including intimidation through the use of

         20  epithets or slurs involving race, ethnicity,

         21  national origin, religion, religious practices,

         22  gender sexual orientation or disability", and

         23   "engaging in physical sexual aggression/compelling

         24  or forcing another to engage in sexual activity".

         25                 At the same time, the Department's
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          2  Office of Equal Opportunity provides training for

          3  teachers, staff, students and parents on such topics

          4  as sexual harassment, tolerance and workplace

          5  disharmony.  Moreover, the Department produces and

          6  distributes a variety of written materials for use

          7  by teachers and students to address sexual

          8  harassment resolving conflict, bullying and violence

          9  prevention.

         10                 I want to report that since the last

         11  time we appeared before the City Council on this

         12  legislation, I believe last October, and at your

         13  recommendation, we have updated Chancellor's

         14  regulation A- 830 to include an additional protected

         15  class of gender identity.  This matches language in

         16  the City's Human Rights Law, amended by the Council

         17  and signed into law by the Mayor.

         18                 In addition to adding language to A-

         19  830, Chancellor Klein has implemented several

         20  initiatives to optimize safe and productive learning

         21  and teaching environments in our schools.  As you

         22  know, we have introduced a new citywide Disciplinary

         23  Code and we are supporting the code with a curricula

         24  and lesson plans to help teachers make the code

         25  meaningful to our students from the early grades
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          2  onward and to make the principales set forth in the

          3  Code an integral part of daily life in our

          4  classrooms.  We are also asking our teachers, APs

          5  and staff to bring a new vigor in their interaction

          6  with students outside the classroom so that our

          7  students get the message that behavioral rules apply

          8  wherever they are in the school building.

          9                 We are proud of the work of the

         10  Office of Youth Development and School Community

         11  Services established by Chancellor Klein and headed

         12  up by Dr. Lester Young. Also, since I last appeared

         13  before you, the Chancellor took the further step of

         14  creating a new position of Senior Counselor for

         15  School Intervention and Development, appointing Rose

         16  Albanese-DePinto to serve the Department in this

         17  capacity.  Her role is to monitor emerging problems

         18  at schools and recommend and implement preventive

         19  strategies. Both of these offices were created

         20  specifically to address students' needs and issues

         21  beyond the curriculum, and are integrally connected

         22  with the safety initiatives we implemented early

         23  this year.  As the Chancellor testified earlier this

         24  year, these initiatives are purposely aimed at

         25  disorderly behavior.  We are identifying and
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          2  focusing particular attention on those students who

          3  are repeatedly disrupting school and causing

          4  trouble, including harassment.  To protect the

          5  learning process for the rest of our students,

          6  repeat offenders are removed from classrooms and

          7  placed in alternative settings.

          8  For the schools that have particular problems

          9  stemming from behavior and are deemed a threat, we

         10  have identified them as impact schools and are

         11  investing additional resources and attention to get

         12  kids back on the right track.

         13                 The City Council's proposed Dignity

         14  for All Students Act, which would prohibit acts of

         15  harassment in the New York City schools, mirrors the

         16  intent of the New York City Department of

         17  Education's anti- discrimination and harassment

         18  policies.

         19                 In fact, as we have testified before,

         20  the Department and the Office of the Mayor support

         21  State legislation of the same title sponsored by

         22  Assemblyman Steve Sanders and Senator Thomas Duane.

         23  The Department believes the appropriate avenue for

         24  securing strengthened anti discrimination

         25  legislation for schools is through amendment of the
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          2  State Education Law.  Section 2801 of the Education

          3  Law currently governs codes of conduct that are

          4  required in all public schools throughout the state

          5  and would pre-empt local laws related to these

          6  matters.

          7                 In addition, the Department has

          8  concerns about the implementation and monitoring of

          9  the proposed act. The language of the bill does not

         10  clearly define whether the act applies to students

         11  or students and staff and in what circumstances.

         12  Language that is overly general, such as the

         13  references to harassment based on "school

         14  performance or any other characteristic or reason

         15  that has or would reasonably have the effect of

         16  substantially interfering with the student's

         17  educational performance, opportunities or benefits

         18  or the student's mental or emotional or physical

         19  wellbeing," opens the door to misunderstanding and

         20  confusion in the application of the law.  Also

         21  unclear is the definition of "retaliatory action,"

         22  particularly "negative performance evaluation," and

         23   "failure to promote or transfer or assignment".

         24                 Furthermore, the broad language that

         25  makes this legislation difficult to quantify make
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          2  the Department susceptible to significant

          3  liabilities even for events and activities outside

          4  of our control.  For example, including subways,

          5  buses and ferries in the definition of "school

          6  premises," makes the Department of Education liable

          7  for behavior that takes place well beyond our

          8  purview and are, in fact, under the jurisdiction of

          9  other agencies, some of them regulated by

         10  authorities beyond New York City, such as the MTA,

         11  for example.  The definition of "school function"

         12  could also make the Department liable for actions of

         13  outside organizations that rent our school buildings

         14  after hours for a variety of activities.  As many of

         15  you know, there are organizations that use our space

         16  for adult athletic leagues and other purposes.

         17                 There are other concerns as well.

         18  Chief among them are the enforcement and burdensome

         19  reporting requirements that principals would have to

         20  shoulder without any additional support.  Principals

         21  would be required to enforce policies and guidelines

         22  and be designated the person to receive incident

         23  reports completed for each event.  We need our

         24  principals to be focused on building supportive and

         25  constructive learning communities rather than
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          2  burdened with additional paperwork.

          3                 Nevertheless, the goals and

          4  objectives of the proposed State and City

          5  legislation reflect the same values promoted by the

          6  New York City Department of Education. Rather than

          7  symbolic legislation with unfunded mandates and

          8  substantial liability, we believe incorporating

          9  additional meaningful programs and strategies would

         10  be more effective in combatting harassment.  As the

         11  Chancellor has stated before in meetings with

         12  advocates, we stand ready to work with the sponsors

         13  of the City Council proposals and the advocacy

         14  community to identify additional measures that could

         15  be undertaken to strengthen the anti- harassment and

         16  discrimination policies and practices.

         17                 Thank you, and I'd be happy to answer

         18  your questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         20  You say on page 2 that the Code or the Disciplinary

         21  Code is sent to all schools and principals and then

         22  sent home with students. I'm the mother of a public

         23  school student, as you know. I've never received a

         24  copy of the Disciplinary Code in any way, shape or

         25  form, and my child has been in the school system now
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          2  approximately eight months.  Are you suggesting that

          3  it's utterly unique?

          4                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I don't know if

          5  it's utterly unique.  Hopefully, it's a rare

          6  instance.  I'll look into it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  On what basis

          8  would you say it's rare?  Is there any monitoring?

          9  How do you know that it's not, you know, I'm one of

         10  95% of parents who have not gotten a copy of the

         11  Disciplinary Code?

         12                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Well, I've spoken

         13  to staff about what our processes are in terms of

         14  distribution and principals have to sign a statement

         15  and affirmation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So they have

         17  to sign some sort of affidavit that says that they

         18  sent it home.

         19                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  That's

         21  paperwork, right?  Okay.  I'm very skeptical, Mr.

         22  Allinger, that most parents -- are there parents

         23  here in the audience?  Raise your hand if you're a

         24  parent.  Has anyone ever gotten a copy of a

         25  Disciplinary Code?  Raise your hand.  Two, three?
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          2  I'm asking how many people have.  Raise your hand

          3  high if you have.  Okay.  How many have not?  Okay.

          4  You know, obviously I would not suggest in any way

          5  this is any statistical sampling, but I would be

          6  very surprised if most parents got a copy, so I

          7  would ask you to look into that.

          8                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I will do so.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Great.  In

         10  terms of your description of the regulations, I just

         11  want to clarify. You discuss at some length

         12  Chancellor's regulation A- 830. What is the

         13  underlying thrust of that regulation?

         14                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  The underlying

         15  thrust, just to put it in context, state law

         16  requires that each school district in the state

         17  promulgate a Code of Conduct and that law was

         18  amended in a very substantial way in year 2000 by

         19  the State's Save Legislation, and it requires a

         20  laying out of the expected conduct and the penalties

         21  for violating this Code of Conduct.  It has

         22  definitions of impermissible behavior --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Are you

         24  absolutely sure of that, because I have a very

         25  different reading.  I'm talking about Regulation A-

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  830.

          3                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Okay.  You're

          4  talking about the filing internal complaints and

          5  discrimination.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  My

          7  understanding is that the central underlying thrust

          8  of A- 830, and correct me if you think I'm wrong, is

          9  that it's about discrimination --

         10                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  In an unlawful --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- In the

         12  delivery of educational services.  That it has

         13  absolutely nothing to do with student- on- student

         14  behavior, faculty/student behavior. That it says you

         15  can't discriminate when you provide educational

         16  services.  Is that -- am I --

         17                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I believe it

         18  pertains to alleged discrimination and unlawful

         19  harassment.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Are you sure?

         21                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I'm sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         23  Unfortunately, I don't have it with me, in front of

         24  me, but I'd hate to think that there was an

         25  incorrect reading of it because I think it's pretty
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          2  clear.  But we'll go back after the hearing and try

          3  and clarify this.  My reading is that it's about

          4  discrimination in the delivery of educational

          5  services and that you've now added gender

          6  identities, that you can't discriminate in

          7  delivering educational services based on that

          8  category.

          9                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  It also covers

         10  unlawful harassment.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Regulation

         12  831, would you say it's fair to categorize as being

         13  about sexual misconduct between students?

         14                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Neither of

         16  these regulations, I just wanted to clarify for the

         17  record, in my view, specifically address bullying or

         18  harassment or student- to- staff sexual or other

         19  misconduct.  So I don't view expanding those

         20  categories as addressing what we're trying to

         21  address in the particular bill.

         22                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Madam Chair, our

         23  Code of Conduct proscribes bullying behavior.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Your Code of

         25  Conduct does what?
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          2                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  It proscribes, it

          3  makes bullying a punishable offense.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  The

          5  Discipline Code, though, is different than the

          6  regulation --

          7                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I understand.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Right?

          9  Those are two separate documents. It's not that one

         10  is included in the other.  The Disciplinary Code is

         11  one document.  And then the Chancellor's regulations

         12  number, in whatever sequence they're numbered, are

         13  totally different.

         14                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I just want to be

         15  clear that our Code of Conduct incorporates

         16  provisions making bullying impermissible and also

         17  punishes such behavior.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I don't

         19  dispute that, but you did cite regulation A- 830 as

         20  a reason for why DASA is not necessary, and I don't

         21  find that very convincing because of the narrow

         22  focus of regulation 830.

         23                 Let me just go back to one or tow

         24  other points.  You say on page 5 in your testimony

         25  that one of the problems with DASA is that it
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          2  includes possible liability of transportation to and

          3  from school.  Are you aware that at a previous

          4  hearing, I think it's Ben Tucker, Ben Tucker

          5  testified that he considered that the transportation

          6  to and from school was part of the Mayor and the

          7  Department's responsibility in terms of student

          8  safety?

          9                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  But you included

         10  the public transportation conveyances that are not

         11  under our     -- I think ferries are listed under

         12  this.  You know, I would have to construe subways.

         13  Certainly, transportation that    we contract for,

         14  where we have control through those contracts --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Well, that's

         16  not what he said, but maybe that's what he meant.

         17

         18                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I think that's

         19  what he meant.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  It

         21  would be nice if people could say what they mean

         22  because that's not what he said.  What he said was a

         23  more general concept, not that somehow public

         24  transportation was excluded.

         25                 And just for the record, you say on
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          2  the top of page 5 that you're not satisfied that the

          3  definition of harassment may be overly broad and it

          4  may lead to misunderstanding and confusion in the

          5  application of the law.  Are you aware that for

          6  seven months this Committee has been in contact with

          7  the Department of Education asking for any input

          8  that it might have on this terminology?

          9                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  This isn't the --

         10  today's hearing and my testimony is not the first

         11  time we've raised the issue of concern about the

         12  definition.  We raised this also in October of last

         13  fall, particularly the school performance

         14  definition.  When you read it together with certain

         15  other provisions, we felt it was overly broad.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I have asked

         17  in writing, I don't know if you're aware of these

         18  letters, but I have asked in writing for any

         19  concerns and complaints or disagreements of any

         20  language in the bill and I've received nothing to

         21  date.  Are you aware of that?

         22                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I know we've

         23  conveyed it verbally and in conversations.  If you

         24  would like it in writing, we will provide it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  When I ask
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          2  for it in writing, I'd like it in writing.  And then

          3  we don't have the problem of the "he said/she said".

          4    Of course, the counsel to the Committee is in

          5  contact with your office, but I have not gotten any

          6  indication that you want particular changes and, in

          7  fact, I offered to sit down with the Department on

          8  multiple occasions to see if there was any

          9  particular concerns they had and I've received

         10  nothing to date.

         11                 Let me turn the floor over now to

         12  Council Member Christine Quinn who I think has some

         13  comments or questions.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you,

         15  Madam Chair.  First, as I referenced at the last

         16  hearing, I had concerns about, very significant

         17  concerns about the Department's omission of gender

         18  identity.  Now, you said that you had added that

         19  into the bill, correct, into your regulations?

         20                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  That's correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Can you tell

         22  me exactly the language you added in?

         23                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I believe the

         24  language, I don't have the exact language in front

         25  of me, but I think one definition I'm familiar with
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          2  under the State DASA is gender identity is different

          3  from that traditionally assigned at birth.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But, the State

          5  DASA is great, but my concern, which I raised at the

          6  first hearing, was that what the representative of

          7  the Department of Education at the first hearing

          8  articulated as the categories and groups of

          9  individuals who are protected was not the same as

         10  the City's Human Rights Law.  And I was deeply

         11  troubled that the Department, particularly after

         12  Mayoral control or even before, would feel somehow

         13  not bound to replicate the protections of the City's

         14  Human Rights Law.

         15                 Gender identity, as you defined it,

         16  is actually not what is in the City's Human Rights

         17  Law and the term is "gender identity" and "gender

         18  expression", which is not what you said in the

         19  beginning nor even does it appear to me that you

         20  referenced as your guiding point the City's Human

         21  Rights Law but the State's law.  And when you made

         22  your opening statement and you listed the groups of

         23  individuals, "In celebration of this fact the

         24  Department embraces and promotes the cultural

         25  diversity among students and school staff.  Indeed,
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          2  it is the policy of the Department to provide

          3  educational and employment opportunities without

          4  regard to".  In that list you again have not

          5  replicated the City's Human Rights Law.  But you say

          6  later on in your policy against bias and

          7  discrimination, I guess is where you've added in

          8  gender identity.  Is that correct?

          9                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So, should I

         11  believe then that as it relates to the delivery of

         12  education and employment you do discriminate against

         13  people based on gender and gender identity and

         14  gender expression?  Because, although you tell me

         15  later you've added it in in an unsatisfactory and

         16  not well- informed manner, you haven't, though I

         17  appreciate the step, it's a step in the right

         18  direction, it's not there yet, you didn't raise it

         19  in this employment and educational protection.  So

         20  let's start there.  As it relates to employment and

         21  education, delivery of education, do you follow the

         22  City's Human Rights Law?

         23                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Why didn't you

         25  list it since we've had this dance before?  You
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          2  can't be shocked I'm raising it.

          3                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  We testified

          4  obviously in our testimony we refer to the fact that

          5  we have amended our regulations to incorporate the

          6  City Human Rights Law.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I'm not

          8  talking about your regulations for a second as it

          9  relates to bias, discrimination and bullying.  What

         10  I'm talking about here is what you refer to your as

         11  your policy to provide educational and employment

         12  opportunity.  So with it -- as it relates to

         13  providing educational and employment opportunities,

         14  do you abide by the City's Human Rights Law?

         15                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  As I said --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And if you do,

         17  why did you again not fully list it and why again is

         18  the category of transgendered individuals the one

         19  that you omitted?  It was bad enough to begin with,

         20  but this seems almost intentional.

         21

         22                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  All our regs are

         23  broad based and we have anti- discrimination

         24  policies that incorporate the City's Human Rights

         25  Law, as I just stated.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Did you copy

          3  the third paragraph on page 1 out of some employment

          4  manual that you guys have?  Because if you did, it

          5  needs to be updated because that is not the law as

          6  we informed you already.  Why again, even if you

          7  follow it, for argument sake, though it's hard to

          8  imagine it's fully followed, if it's not on the

          9  paper that is being given out and I can only assume

         10  it's not because you, one of the highest ranking

         11  folks, don't have it on your paper, why aren't you

         12  distributing it, why aren't you writing it that way,

         13  why aren't you telling people that?

         14                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Council Member,

         15  all I can do is assure you that we follow the City

         16  Human Rights Law, that we support the spirit of

         17  this, the values of this legislation and that we're

         18  prepared to work with you to identify model

         19  practices --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, a model

         21            practice --

         22                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  -- To implement

         23  the most effective programs.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  A model

         25  practice would be that when the agency comes to
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          2  testify to the City Council about its policy to

          3  provide educational and employment opportunities,

          4  that that policy, as given to the Council, reflect

          5  the City's Human Rights Law.  And that when you list

          6  it for us, you list it in the entirety of the law

          7  because the entirety of the law is what you are

          8  following.  So I would request that I be provided,

          9  and please provide it to the Chair directly but to

         10  me directly as well, a copy of your educational, a

         11  copy of your policy to provide educational and

         12  employment opportunities so I can see.

         13                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Certainly.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And I'd like

         15  what you have internally at DOE and I'd like every

         16  copy of that that is disseminated to every rank of

         17  employee within the school system.

         18                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Okay.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Now again, as

         20  we go to the other issue of the policy against

         21  discrimination and bias in all facilities, that's

         22  where you stated you added gender identity, is that

         23  correct?

         24                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  You've added
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          2  it in in only a partial form of what the law says.

          3  So I would again request all copies of that in the

          4  same broad- based manner of request and again ask

          5  that you change it, to do it correctly as the law

          6  says, and then if I could get copies of it after

          7  you've done that updating.

          8                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  And we will

          9  furnish you A- 830, A- 831 --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I'm sorry,

         11  what?

         12                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I said we will

         13  furnish you with the relevant regs.  You will see

         14  that these are broad- based regulations.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I'm actually

         16  not -- I'm sorry, I'm not concerned about them being

         17  broad- based today.

         18                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Okay.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right now all

         20  I'm concerned about is that they be the letter of

         21  the City's Human Rights Law.

         22                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Okay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.  And

         24  then maybe we should meet and talk about how we

         25  regulatorily could go beyond that and we will set
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          2  that meeting up.  But today, all I'm asking is that

          3  they be the letter of the Human Rights Law.  So

          4  thank you for getting me all these copies.

          5                 In the conversation you were having

          6  with the Chair about the various regulations, the

          7  numbers of which I don't recall, you used the phrase

          8  relating to one of them that "it prohibited unlawful

          9  behavior", right?

         10                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Something to that

         11  effect, yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  That raised

         13  kind of a red flag for me because at the first

         14  hearing when we asked about statistics, the

         15  statistics we were given were the statistics of the

         16  New York City Hate Crimes Task Force within the

         17  Police Department of incidents that they had that

         18  happened in school.  And I really think the Hate

         19  Crimes Task Force in the NYPD is extraordinary and

         20  do a terrific job but, of course, the behavior we're

         21  talking about here that we're trying to prevent, not

         22  all of it, thank God, is illegal.  Not all of it is

         23  actually criminal in nature. We wanted -- partially

         24  we're doing this to make it stop before it elevates

         25  to a criminal nature.  So if your reg number
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          2  whatever, whatever prohibits behavior that is

          3  unlawful, doesn't it then fall short of much of the

          4  behavior that Council Member Gerson's bill is trying

          5  to prevent?

          6                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I was referring

          7  to the State law proscribed in Section 2801, I think

          8  it's Article 55, the Education Law, that requires

          9  Boards of Ed across the State and the Chancellor in

         10  the case of the City of New York

         11  school system to promulgate a discipline code and

         12  that law has a very lengthy list of proscribed

         13  behavior.  It's targeted towards prevention of

         14  violence, disruptive behavior.  It also, the law

         15  also generally incorporates the grounds by which you

         16  can suspend a student, both a short term suspension

         17  which principals are authorized to do and long-term

         18  suspensions which superintendents are authorized.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So to move

         20  beyond, to try to capture and prevent behavior that

         21  is not unlawful as defined by the State law, we need

         22  something more.

         23                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Which is why

         24  we're supporting the Duane/Sanders legislation.

         25  Moreover, I think the Chancellor feels strongly that
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          2  we have to have something implementable that the

          3  State law provides these authorities exclusively to

          4  school districts in these areas and that the proper

          5  jurisdiction is State law and, moreover, we have

          6  other initiatives at the State level that we feel

          7  very strongly about in order to strengthen those

          8  protections.  We talk about, for instance --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Can I?  Just

         10  before we get off of this Senator Duane/Assemblyman

         11  Sanders, if you don't mind my interrupting, how are

         12  you supporting it?

         13                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  We've memoed in

         14  support going back I think it was four years ago.  I

         15  had many meetings particularly with Assemblyman

         16  Sanders about the language of the bill.  We've

         17  provided feedback.  There were a lot of liability

         18  issues at that point that we worked through.  And

         19  we're prepared to do more.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Because I

         21  spoke to Senator Duane's staff today, both his New

         22  York City staff and his Albany staff, and he

         23  testified himself at the last hearing, we actually

         24  drafted him to testify, he was in the back of the

         25  room and we brought him up so we could ask him what
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          2  type of connection, conversations had there been,

          3  contact between the DOE and his office.  He said

          4  something to the effect of he was sure the

          5  Department of Education probably had a lobbyist in

          6  Albany and they were probably, I think he said, a

          7  nice person though he had actually never met them.

          8  And as of -- and certainly never been met with about

          9  the context of this bill.  As of this morning, as of

         10  a half an hour ago, Senator Duane has still,

         11  downstate or in Albany, not been contacted by the

         12  Mayor's Office or the Department of Education about

         13  this bill.

         14                 Now, it's great you met with the

         15  Assembly side, but if we're led to believe we don't

         16  need to do this because it's going to be taken care

         17  of in Albany, I'm a little bit more not comforted by

         18  that thought when you've only met with one side of

         19  the Legislature and only with one of the lead

         20  sponsors.  So, I mean --

         21                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I'm here also

         22  today to ask to work with you in partnership to

         23  augment our efforts to secure passage of this

         24  legislation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  In Albany.
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          2                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  In Albany.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But why didn't

          4  anybody between October and --

          5                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  The Chancellor

          6  has also met with the advocates who are also

          7  supporting the Duane/Sanders legislation.  But if I

          8  could just add one small --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Let me just,

         10  before we get on to other things, I know those

         11  advocates, they're mostly here.  They are also the

         12  people who asked the Council to do this bill so I

         13  don't think -- I think that's good the Chancellor

         14  met with them but I don't think that meeting made

         15  them feel that we didn't need a City law because

         16  they are still very, very, very much, and they'll

         17  speak for themselves when they testify, urging us to

         18  do this bill. And I still think, you know, between

         19   -- the two to three issues I'm raising we spoke of

         20  in October and nobody between October and now ever

         21  reached out to Senator Duane or to us on the Council

         22  to say, "Hey, how can we aggressively go to Albany

         23  together to try to get this done?"  Had we gone up

         24  together, you know, myself Council Member Moskowitz,

         25  Council Member Gerson, with Chancellor Klein,
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          2  perhaps we'd feel differently today.  If we had

          3  coordinated a strategy with Senator Duane and

          4  Assemblyman Sanders we might feel differently, but

          5  we haven't, so I'm skeptical.  But you wanted to add

          6  another point.

          7                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Okay.  The

          8  Chancellor had a member --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I'm sorry,

         10  what?

         11                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Chancellor Klein

         12  had a meeting with one of the --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Steve, if I

         14  could ask you to speak into the mike.

         15                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  The Chancellor

         16  has met with the sponsor of the legislation, one of

         17  the sponsors, to offer to --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  He met with

         19  Senator Duane?

         20                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  No, I'm talking

         21   -- with advocates in January.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, you said

         23   --

         24                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  They talked about

         25  efforts we could make both to identify effective
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          2  practices anywhere across the country to implement

          3  them here in our own school system and also to --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But that --

          5                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  -- Augment

          6  efforts to secure the legislation which we need to

          7  amend the State law. If I could add --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But none of

          9  that dissuaded, none of that made the advocates feel

         10  that this bill wasn't needed.  That isn't the same,

         11  though it's good to meet with the advocates if you

         12  get a chance, it's excellent to do that, it's not

         13  the same as having talked to those two people, the

         14  two lead people in Albany.  It's not the same as

         15  having spoken to both of them and it's not the same

         16  as having asked the Council to do it with you.

         17                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  We obviously

         18  communicate with both the Senate and Assembly on

         19  legislation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But not the

         21  sponsor of this bill on this bill.

         22                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  We communicate

         23  with the   -- what I'd like to do is focus on

         24  efforts we could make together to get effective

         25  legislation that would be properly grounded in terms
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          2  of jurisdiction.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I agree and I

          4  think meeting with the lead sponsors of bills is the

          5  best thing one can do to start that process.  You

          6  had another point that I had interrupted you on.

          7                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Yes.  Another

          8  statute that we believe needs to be amended to

          9  effectively protect students who are victimized by

         10  harassment and violence is a statute that really

         11  doesn't authorize administrators to voluntarily

         12  transfer those who perpetrate violence or are

         13  chronically disruptive.  The State law prohibits us,

         14  when we're having a disciplinary hearing, from, as

         15  part of that process, to voluntarily transfer or in

         16  essence to remove the victimizer. In effect, what we

         17  wind up having to do is often transfer the victim.

         18  We feel that law needs change.  It's incorporated in

         19  Senate Bill 5325.  There are a host of measures that

         20  we could discuss with you that we believe need to be

         21  changed and would give principals and

         22  superintendents the kinds of tools they need to

         23  enhance school safety and discipline.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, I would

         25  welcome the opportunity to meet with the Department
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          2  of Education about those other issues after you --

          3                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But we will

          5  still, in my opinion, move forward with the DASA

          6  initiative.  Thank you.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

          8  Member Gerson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         10  very much. Mr. Allinger, if I were to add up all the

         11  times I've heard this Administration testify that

         12  the Administrative supports the spirit of

         13  legislation it opposes, I would be in a state of

         14  spiritual bliss and enlightenment.  I mean, I could

         15  stop going to synagogue and I'd be perfectly fine.

         16  But, you know, it's just frustrating.  I hear your

         17  statement that you would like to work with us and I

         18  certainly will take you     up on that, as I'm sure

         19  my colleagues will, and I look forward --

         20                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I'm sorry.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I'll let you

         22  all finish.  I look forward -- I'm sure if we work

         23  together we can come up with the best, most

         24  effective piece of legislation but I'd like our

         25  efforts to be directed to that goal.  And to get
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          2  started on that maybe we could just, you could help

          3  me sort out a little bit of confusion I have based

          4  on some of what you all have testified this time and

          5  last.  And I'll be very brief because my colleagues

          6  have been very thorough in their questioning.

          7                 I guess as a general point, I mean I

          8  hear all the proactive measures the Department is

          9  taking, and if you're really doing all of this and

         10  it's really working and it's truly having an impact,

         11  I guess I don't understand why you would oppose this

         12  piece of legislation.  Because if you're doing all

         13  this good stuff and the stuff you have planned, you

         14  very well might be in compliance with what we are

         15  proposing and, if that's the case, why not support

         16  the legislation to assure that future

         17  administrations and future departments of education

         18  continue to meet the mark of this legislation which

         19  you are following?  If you're doing a good thing and

         20  if what you're doing is having the positive impact

         21  it has, there should be no problem complying and why

         22  not set this forth as a legacy to assure we don't

         23  slip back to the battle days.

         24                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Council Member,

         25  we support a bill that is substantially similar to
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          2  this at the State level.  The Chancellor feels very

          3  strongly that we have to properly amend the law so

          4  that it is something that we can utilize so that it

          5  isn't challenged based on jurisdictional issues.

          6  But moreover, I want to make it clear that the

          7  Chancellor has asked that advocates provide the

          8  Department of Education a list of meaningful

          9  programs and strategies that we can include.  And we

         10  can always improve.  I don't want to give the

         11  impression that we want to rest on our laurels or we

         12  think we've done all that we can.  Both the Mayor

         13  and the Chancellor believe in the principle of

         14  continuous improvement.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  But the

         16  purpose of legislation is to make sure that

         17  improvement is permanent, that improvement doesn't

         18  depend on you, Mr. Allinger, being in the position

         19  you are, Chancellor Klein being the Chancellor, but

         20  it is a requirement of the City of New York and it

         21  continues through all Administrations and all

         22  individuals.  And let me ask you this because that's

         23  my other source of confusion.  Your reference to

         24  your support of the State bill, but your opposition

         25  to the parallel City bill, am I to deduce that then
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          2  the only reason you oppose this DASA bill is based

          3  on the issue of legal jurisdiction and if we were to

          4  get the lawyers together and work out provisions

          5  which satisfy jurisdictional issues from the legal

          6  perspective, that the Chancellor and the

          7  Administration would then support this, a piece of

          8  legislation at the City level.  Is that correct?

          9                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  The principal

         10  reason, it's not the only -- there are some

         11  substantive issues that we've raised, but the

         12  principal problem is the jurisdictional issue.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So if we

         14  could work out the jurisdictional issue, we could

         15  come up -- you have no objections, per se, to the

         16  City Council legislation if we could satisfy the

         17  jurisdictional point, is that correct? It's a yes or

         18  no answer.

         19                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  We would always

         20  be open to supporting legislation with the premise

         21  that it has proper jurisdiction.  Obviously not

         22  sight unseen.  There     are --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Obviously.

         24                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.  Well,
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          2  then I look forward to getting our lawyers together

          3  and I hope part of your offer of working together

          4  will include working on the legal jurisdictional.

          5            Just very, very briefly, 1993 the policy

          6  the Board adopted, could you tell me what were the

          7  statistical changes in acts of bullying in all of

          8  the categories identified in the Board policy before

          9  and after the '93 policy over the intervening years?

         10    How much in each of the category, in each of those

         11  categories has bullying increased or decreased?

         12                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I would have --

         13  we rely on Police Department data and I would have

         14  to -- you know, I can't recite it off the top of my

         15  head, but I will go back and furnish you all as much

         16  historical information as I can.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Do you know

         18  if the Police Department keeps records of acts of

         19  teasing and taunting?

         20                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I don't believe

         21  so.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I don't

         23  believe they do so, therefore, we don't know.

         24  Therefore, you're testifying that we have no way of

         25  knowing whether or not those acts of bullying have
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          2  gone up or down in the aftermath -- we have no way

          3  of measuring the effectiveness of the '93 policy and

          4  that is specifically one of the areas we wish to

          5  correct because one of the main points of DASA is to

          6  require that type of statistic, keeping and taking.

          7  And by the fact that we don't do that, it shows, and

          8  I know we don't do that, the fact that we don't is a

          9  further reflection of the failure as a city, as an

         10  administration to take these issues seriously

         11  because if we did take it seriously, we would be

         12  keeping these statistics clearly.

         13                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Our new Code of

         14  Conduct will allow us to capture that information.

         15  We do take it very seriously.  I know the Chancellor

         16  and the Mayor feel very strongly that --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  If you can't

         18  tell me if it's gotten better or worse, it's hard

         19  for me to how that's the case.

         20                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Well, we don't

         21  have baseline data from 1993 and --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  How about

         23  from --

         24                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  We will establish

         25  the baseline data with the new Code of Conduct and I
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          2  know that we've also -- hopefully, through surveys

          3  we can capture the tone and the learning environment

          4  that parents perceive in their schools.  There's

          5  many ways in which we get feedback on the learning

          6  environment in schools.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So I'm back

          8  to my original point.  If you're going to do what

          9  the DASA legislation requires anyway, why not pass

         10  it to ensure that it continues.

         11                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Because the State

         12  law --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  We're going

         14  to work that out.

         15                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Okay.  We're

         16  going to meet on that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  We're going

         18  to work out the jurisdictional issues.  We have very

         19  good lawyers and --

         20                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Yes, you do.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- And I've

         22  dealt -- as do you and I'm sure if we get them both

         23  together, and having worked in the law before my

         24  current position, there are ways, if there's a will

         25  to work out most of these jurisdictional issues.
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          2                 My very last point, the language that

          3  you say is overly general.

          4                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And I don't

          6  doubt that some of the language, as you said, we can

          7  always improve.  I hope you don't really mean to

          8  criticize as too general the part of the language in

          9  your testimony which refers to harassment based on

         10  any other characteristic or reason that has -- I'll

         11  stop there.  The point of that language was to

         12  capture the myriad of situations where the taunting

         13  or the harassment doesn't fit within the literal

         14  reading of the current policy which you cite in your

         15  testimony, which literally only prescribes this

         16  behavior if either, A, and I'm reading your

         17  language, it seeks to compel a student to do

         18  something, and we all know there's a lot of taunting

         19  and teasing and bullying which is for its own awful

         20  sake, not to compel a student to do something or, B,

         21  that threatens them with harm.  We know there's a

         22  lot of teasing and taunting that doesn't literally

         23  threaten with harm.  So that is why we needed to put

         24  in the general language or language certainly more

         25  general than your current language to capture those
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          2  situations, to make it clear that no acts, whether

          3  again it's, going back to my original statement,

          4  whether it's reasons of homophobia or reasons of

          5  race, religion, creed or just for reasons because a

          6  child just doesn't seem to fit in.  We need to make

          7  it clear that no taunting, teasing, physical

          8  bullying is permissible for any reason whatsoever,

          9  and the only way to do that is through such general

         10  language.  So do you have a problem with that?

         11                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  My principal

         12  concern here is when you take all the definitions

         13  together, the definition of harassment also talks

         14  about academic or --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I just want

         16  to say, I'm asking you -- I understand.  I said it

         17  as I introduced my question, I recognize you covered

         18  many points, but I wanted to see if you really had a

         19  concern with this particular point.

         20                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Not that point in

         21  isolation.  It's when you read it together and

         22  they're very technical points, what constitutes

         23  harassment because it also talks about benefits and

         24  opportunities.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  But --
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          2                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  If I could just

          3  give one example.  On --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  But I wish

          5  you would stick to the question.  I'm just asking

          6  about the need to expand your, the current literal

          7  policy so we capture those cases of bullying which

          8  don't fit within the current literal language of the

          9  policy and that's one of the purposes.  So I'm

         10  hearing you wouldn't support that.

         11                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Council Member,

         12  not in isolation.  It's only when it's read together

         13  with phrases like "benefits and opportunities"

         14  because, illustratively, you have student

         15  achievement so we didn't want it misconstrued that

         16  if somebody wasn't, didn't have the opportunity to

         17  take a sequential course because they had failed the

         18  preceding course that they would have to take

         19  together, that wasn't construed as harassment.  And

         20  these are very technical, legal points that I

         21  believe we could --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I believe we

         23  could work it because certainly that's not the

         24  intent.  As long as you're committed --

         25                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  That's not the
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          2  intent.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- To

          4  generalizing the current language,

          5                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  -- And again,

          7  I'm glad to see that you seem to be one way or the

          8  other adopting the provisions.

          9                 Really my final point is, and this is

         10  a comment, you testified, and again I'm a little

         11  concerned -- confused about your testimony as to the

         12  burdensomeness of reporting requirements.  First of

         13  all, you don't seem to have that concern with the

         14  State law, which would impose, the jurisdictional

         15  issue aside, it would impose virtually the same type

         16  of reporting requirements.  But again, it's hard ---

         17  I'll be a good teacher, I'll wait till the

         18  conversation is finished.

         19                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I'm sorry.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No, that's

         21  okay.

         22  But I guess again it's hard for me and I think the

         23  community to see where the Administration and the

         24  Department is taking this situation seriously if

         25  you're concerned about burdensomeness of reporting
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          2  requirements which, clearly we could fit in with

          3  existing procedures within schools -- my mother's a

          4  retired phys. Ed. Teacher and every time a child

          5  scraped their knee or had any kind of a normal

          6  accident in the gymnasium, she had to fill out a

          7  report.  And I assure you that did not undermine her

          8  teaching effectiveness and it was a good thing

          9  because it enabled the schools to track what was

         10  happening to improve a situation.  So clearly, you

         11  take scrapes and cuts seriously -- if you really

         12  took this conduct seriously, you would want to

         13  implement the same type of reporting requirements,

         14  which I'm sure could be done and I'm sure we'll hear

         15  testimony to that effect from the professionals,

         16  could be done with common sense procedures without

         17  detracting from education.  That's really a comment.I

         18  would look forward to working on this to get City

         19  legislation because we don't know, unless you can

         20  guarantee you know something I don't know, that the

         21  State law is definitely going to pass.  But in the

         22  absence of that, I would hope that we could work to

         23  get city legislation that we can pass.

         24                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  I think we can

         25  certainly work to address the issue you just raised,
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          2  which is reporting.  I think if we could dovetail

          3  and streamline reporting requirements between the

          4  Department and the Police Department, maybe we could

          5  find ways to strengthen reporting along the lines of

          6  what you want in this legislation.  And certainly,

          7  we have raised concerns we had with reporting

          8  requirements in the State legislation.  I don't want

          9  you to think that we're being invidious in the way

         10  we're responding to bills.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  We would

         12  never think such a thing.  Thank you very much.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         14  very much, Mr. Allinger for your testimony.  We look

         15  forward to getting the documents that were

         16  discussed.  And if we could get those in an

         17  expeditious fashion, we'd appreciate it.

         18                 DIRECTOR ALLINGER:  Thank you for

         19  inviting me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         21  very much. We're now going to hear from Leroy Barr,

         22  David Mensah and Kevin Jennings. If they could join

         23  us and if the Sergeant of- Arms could put one more

         24  chair, that would be helpful. We've also been joined

         25  by David Yassky, Council Member of this Committee
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          2  from Brooklyn.  I should just indicate that we have

          3  this room till 12:30 and we're behind schedule.  So

          4  I would just encourage our panelists to not feel

          5  that they have to read their testimony.  I know this

          6  is an issue that every one of you know well and we

          7  really want as much time for questions and comments

          8  as possible.  Welcome.  Thank you very, very much

          9  for being here.  Why don't we begin in the order in

         10  which I called you, Mr. Leroy Barr from the United

         11  Federation of Teachers.  Welcome and thank you for

         12  being here.

         13                 MR. BARR:  Good morning.  I am Leroy

         14  Barr, Special Representative for the United

         15  Federation of Teachers.  I was also a fifth grade

         16  classroom teacher and a math instructional

         17  specialist at PS 154 in Harlem for seven years

         18  before joining the union's staff.

         19                 On behalf of President Randi

         20  Weingarten and the UFT's 150,000 members I want to

         21  thank Chairwoman Moskowitz and Chairman Vallone and

         22  the members of the City Council's Education and

         23  Public Safety teams for soliciting our testimony on

         24  controlling for and eliminating harassment in

         25  schools.
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          2                 Harassment and bullying are major

          3  school issues.  Even more than making school life

          4  unsafe and unpleasant, harassing behavior frequently

          5  leaves schools incapable of fulfilling their

          6  mission:  Educating a new generation of New Yorkers.

          7    Your proposed legislation, Intro. #188, is

          8  therefore welcome.

          9                 The bills goes a long way to identify

         10  and address school harassment, a problem that

         11  degrades the dignity of students and teachers.

         12                 The legislation favors full

         13  professional development of staff so they are better

         14  prepared to deal with harassment and bullying.

         15                 It takes seriously the need for

         16  students to recognize and respect cultural, gender

         17  and other identity differences, so that distinctions

         18  do not become grounds for fighting.  This

         19  sensitivity training is especially important in the

         20  elementary grades, where teaching respect is vital

         21  in getting students to work and play well together.

         22  That alone will go a long way in establishing a safe

         23  and orderly school system.

         24                 It places the Council in an

         25  appropriate spot of furthering education and public
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          2  safety by monitoring the Department's progress

          3  against harassment and bullying.

          4                 It doesn't let the problem rest at

          5  the level of good words and kind intentions.  It

          6  makes the words and intentions operational.  It

          7  spells out what the school's Chancellor and staff

          8  members are expected to do, and holds them

          9  accountable for doing it.  It also requires

         10  presentations to be made to students about conduct

         11  and harassment issues, and it mandates placing its

         12  required policies and guidelines in the school Code

         13  of Conduct.

         14                 It also protects "whistle blowers",

         15  those who reasonably and in good faith report

         16  incidents of harassment against retaliatory action

         17  from superiors or from risk of civil damages.

         18                 With the brief time left me, let me

         19  sketch some ways the UFT would fine tune the

         20  proposed school safety law and make it more

         21  effective.

         22                 The bill would be starkly clear on

         23  what -- the bill should be starkly clear on what

         24  behaviors are unacceptable.  While the legislation

         25  would place sanctions in the Code of Conduct, it
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          2  does not adequately spell out what behaviors are

          3  prohibited.  Neither does it specify what teachers

          4  and other staff have long understood, that sanctions

          5  should be age and grade appropriate as well as

          6  flexible enough to address repetitive acts of

          7  misconduct.              It doesn't sufficiently

          8  focus on bullying, a subset of harassing behavior

          9  with its own pernicious effects.  Bullying itself is

         10  the form through which most harassment of students

         11  by students takes place, whether that's teaching,

         12  threatening or hitting or by such less direct forms

         13  of compulsion as social isolation.  Bullying can

         14  poison the school's atmosphere.  Proactively

         15  involving students, parents, and school staff, as

         16  well as establishing clear punishment for

         17  threatening behavior, is required to ensure that all

         18  students can learn in an environment free from fear.

         19                 The Council had the foresight to put

         20  protection for "whistle blowers" into the law.  It

         21  must also see that those falsely accused are

         22  protected.  That means spelling out dire

         23  consequences for those who in bad faith bring "false

         24  charges" against teachers in particular. Students in

         25  particular who believe they can scapegoat teachers
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          2  with impunity by raising a false harassment charge

          3  against that teacher for doing his or her

          4  professional job undermines school stability and

          5  wrecks promising careers.

          6                 Intro 118 would be immeasurably

          7  strengthened if the Council required both DOE and

          8  the Police Department to report on incidents of

          9  harassment and bullying as part of its regular

         10  reporting of all incidents.  As the Council well

         11  knows, this City is inconsistent in logging and

         12  thoroughly reporting incidents to the Council and to

         13  the public.  A modification to your bill requiring

         14  DOE and NYPD to report on all incidents to the City

         15  Council, along with releasing a published summary of

         16  those incidents, will help present a clearer picture

         17  of safety conditions in schools.

         18                 While the bill recognizes that

         19  student orientation is essential along with

         20  disseminating guidelines and policies in its Code of

         21  Conduct, that work must occur early in the school

         22  year and the earlier the better.  It should

         23  certainly happen within the first two weeks of

         24  school so that steps against harassment and bullying

         25  can work.
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          2                 Lastly, let me raise one red flag.

          3  The section of the bill defining "retaliatory

          4  action" spells out protections for teachers who

          5  report incidents of violence. Harassment or

          6  bullying.  Our fear is that the language could be

          7  misconstrued so that the prohibition on what is

          8  called "negative performance evaluation" would be

          9  stretched to cover any teacher failing any student.

         10  In fact, under current DOE policy safeguards exist

         11  that prohibit students from being penalized

         12  academically for committing a disciplinary

         13  infraction no matter how severe.  Except in the case

         14  of an academic infraction such as cheating, students

         15  now are adequately protected from a punitive

         16  academic evaluation.  Yet if a firm but fair grade

         17  were open to easy challenge from a student or parent

         18  who baselessly charged that a teacher was being

         19  motivated by a personal and unprofessional need to

         20  retaliate, no teacher could ever effectively grade

         21  any of their students.

         22                 Once again, I congratulate the City

         23  Council members on your commitment to seeing that

         24  the DOE acts effectively to end harassment and

         25  bullying in schools, and I look forward to your
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          2  questions.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

          4  Mr. Mensah?

          5                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MENSAH:  Thank

          6  you.  Very glad to be here.  I appreciate the chance

          7  to speak to you, Honorable Speakers Moskowitz,

          8  Gerson, Koppell, Quinn, Yassky.

          9                 My name is David Mensah, I'm the

         10  Executive Director of the Hetrick- Martin Institute,

         11  the honor and the privilege of leading the nation's

         12  oldest and still, unfortunately, largest LGBT youth-

         13  serving agency in the nation and possibly in the

         14  world.  And I just want to remind you that that

         15  institute exists here in New York City, something

         16  that we should be proud of.

         17                 This coming year we'll be 25 years

         18  old and among our many successes and struggles we're

         19  proud to say that we have partnered in addressing

         20  this issue of harassment on school premises with one

         21  of the most forward thinking, progressive schools in

         22  the nation.  It's the one we're talking about, the

         23  New York City public school district.  Partnering

         24  with them for 17 years in their collaborative

         25  enterprise, that which we call the Harvey Milk
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          2  School recently getting much, too much press, while

          3  the kids are trying to get a good education, just

          4  like everyone else. And I want to remind you that

          5  that school serves any child who is at risk in this

          6  school district, some of them, not all of them,

          7  identify as LGBT youth.

          8                 We're very proud of that

          9  collaboration and proud of that connection, and it's

         10  important in this discussion to note that in this

         11  respect this school district, Chancellors Levy

         12  before and Klein currently, as well as Mayor

         13  Bloomberg, and many of the amazing educators who've

         14  worked with us to make sure this school survived for

         15  17 years, have done more to protect the physical and

         16  emotional wellbeing of at- risk teenagers than any

         17  other school in the United States.  There is still

         18  no other school like Harvey Milk.

         19                 But there are also many small schools

         20  in New York City targeting at- risk youth, targeting

         21  young people struggling to be successful but faced

         22  with the same issues, many of the same issues facing

         23  Harvey Milk students. However, it's not my place to

         24  speak about the schools who are doing so much to

         25  address this issue in New York but, rather, about
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          2  the schools the young people that we serve in the

          3  after school go to primarily.  All of the other

          4  schools, and there are so many -- the reason the

          5  school exists after 17 years -- somebody told me the

          6  other day, "Do you realize it's been a generation

          7  that the school has existed?"  So what that means,

          8  ladies and gentlemen, is that while we have been

          9  doing the best we could, we have lost one

         10  generation, one full generation of kids to

         11  harassment and abuse. Because you see, while this

         12  school, the school that we run and the after- school

         13  program, let's do the numbers, 50 to a hundred kids

         14  every year in the school, we see a thousand kids in

         15  the after- school.  Those are big numbers.  We think

         16  that there's maybe 100,000 kids in the New York City

         17  school district.  So what about those kids?  One

         18  year, two years, three years, 17 years now, that's

         19  just since we've been counting.

         20                 How long will we wait while we wait

         21  for the State bill or we wait for the national bill

         22  or we wait for the City bill?  I don't think we can

         23  wait as responsible administrators and adults.  I

         24  don't think the kids can wait. I think it's time for

         25  us to move, not just on DASA but on so many other
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          2  things.

          3                 I'm here to speak for those young

          4  people who remain at risk.  They're at risk in their

          5  homes. Unfortunately, they're at risk on the

          6  streets.  They are at risk, unfortunately, even in

          7  their churches and synagogues sometimes.  But where

          8  should we start?  I think we should at least start

          9  in their schools.  Here we can make a difference.

         10                 So I'm asking for your help.  Twenty-

         11  five years after its founding and 17 years after the

         12  founding of the school, it's still the case, 42% of

         13  LGBT youths don't feel safe.  We're not talking

         14  about I feel bored or I feel like I don't have the

         15  same chance as everybody else, they go to school

         16  every day not feeling safe.  Sometimes kids come to

         17  us after multiple attempts at their own life and

         18  when they stop trying to kill themselves, they

         19  realize that they don't really need therapy anymore,

         20  they just need actually a place to go every day

         21  where somebody thinks they're okay.

         22                 I got a call from a national youth

         23  agency serving a category of kids who are identified

         24  as seriously mentally ill.  They let me know that

         25  40% of those kids self identify as LGBT youth and
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          2  they were calling to ask me if possibly, if it might

          3  be possible that these kids might not be seriously

          4  mentally ill, if there might be something else going

          5  on for them.  And I said politely that is exactly

          6  why we exist.

          7                 We need to have a place where kids

          8  don't have to resolve their issues by going into

          9  therapy.  We need to have a place where kids can go

         10  to school just like everybody else and that needs to

         11  start in New York City like it started so long ago

         12  with the Harvey Milk School.

         13                 Please remember when I list these

         14  statistics that they are national but they are not

         15  inconsistent with our experience here in New York

         16  City.  28% of LGBT youth, three times the national

         17  average drop out of school, 46% report that someone

         18  intervened only some of the time when they were

         19  harassed and that students were more likely to

         20  intervene, unfortunately, than faculty.  42% of LGBT

         21  youth from the northeast region of the United States

         22  report being uncomfortable talking to anybody in

         23  school, especially staff about LGBT issues.  86% of

         24  youth from the northeast region of the United States

         25  report hearing homophobic remarks sometimes or
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          2  frequently.

          3                 So despite our longstanding success

          4  and the success and support from the Speaker,

          5  Miller, Council Members Lopez, Quinn, Gerson, Reed,

          6  Moskowitz and so many others, it's crucial that we

          7  remember that many, many children are still

          8  struggling.

          9                 I want to tell you about one young

         10  person, and I know there are many to hear and tell

         11  you their own stories, but this young woman came to

         12  us at the Institute after her junior year feeling

         13  alone and friendless because, in addition to hating

         14  going to school every day, after coming out to her

         15  parents, and she just came out as confused and

         16  questioning about her orientation, she was

         17  ostracized by every single member of her very

         18  extended family except for one maternal grandfather.

         19    She was forced to move out of her home, out of her

         20  house immediately, out of the place that she had

         21  grown up because her family believed that her coming

         22  out status made her somehow physically infectious to

         23  her siblings.  She ended up living with friends and

         24  then quickly was able to move into a group home. She

         25  came to us for protection and support.  She came to
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          2  us for family and she came to us because she wanted

          3  the same chance as any other young person.

          4                 Now, I'm just telling you this story

          5  because I want you to know that young people don't

          6  just need a safe place for education.  Please

          7  remember that if you remember nothing else.  We're

          8  fighting today for a safe place to go to school, but

          9  the level of harassment and abuse that these kids

         10  experience is ridiculous and it exists in all

         11  aspects of their life.  Please don't think this is

         12  the only place. You would be doing a great thing but

         13  it is just one part of what needs to be done for

         14  these kids.              It's a good thing that we

         15  have an opportunity to do today.  Please act.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         17  Mr. Kevin Jennings.  Thank you for being here this

         18  morning.

         19                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR JENNINGS:  Thank

         20  you, Chairperson Moskowitz.  I'm Kevin Jennings.  I

         21  represent the Gay, Lesbian and Straight Education

         22  Network, an education organization working to make

         23  schools safe and supportive climates for LGBT

         24  students, staff and families.  I want to thank

         25  Council Member Gerson for sponsoring this bill.  I
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          2  want to make the many Council members who have

          3  supported them so strongly, such as Councilwoman

          4  Quinn.  I especially want to thank Chairperson

          5  Moskowitz for making this a priority and Speaker

          6  Miller for stating his public support of the bill.

          7                 I'm going to scrap my proposed

          8  testimony because I feel a deep sense of outrage at

          9  what I see is the contradictory and disingenuous

         10  testimony from Mr. Allinger and Chancellor Klein's

         11  office.  I will focus on my two adjectives

         12  specifically.

         13                 Contradictory.  As Council Member

         14  Gerson pointed out, how on earth can the

         15  Chancellor's Office sit here and not support a bill

         16  at the City level when they claim they support a

         17  vastly expanded same bill at the State level?  If it

         18  is good enough for the children of the State of New

         19  York, it is good enough for the children of the City

         20  of New York, and there is no excuse for not taking

         21  action to protect our children in the city while we

         22  wait around for Albany to take action.

         23                 The fact is the Dignity for All

         24  Students Act in Albany was introduced four years

         25  ago, when today's high school seniors were in their
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          2  first year of high school.  And as David pointed

          3  out, that we've lost a generation of students in the

          4  city, we have lost an entire generation of high

          5  school students waiting for Albany to act.  The

          6  children of the City of New York should no longer

          7  have to wait for Albany.  This Council can take

          8  action and if the bill is good enough for Albany, it

          9  is certainly good enough for New York City and

         10  Chancellor Klein should quit mincing words.

         11                 Secondly, I find the meeting

         12  disingenuous,    the disingenuous adjective to be

         13  appropriate because I participated in the much-

         14  cited meeting between advocates and the Chancellor

         15  in late January in which, and I want to set the

         16  historical record straight on that meeting, we were

         17  asked explicitly in that meeting what works and what

         18  we would recommend to the Chancellor and we gave a

         19  unanimous and clear answer based on statistical

         20  surveys.  What works are policies that are clearly

         21  stated and clearly disseminated to students, staff

         22  and families in schools.

         23                 This is not an opinion.  This is a

         24  finding of the GLSEN 2003 National School Climate

         25  Survey which found that lesbian, gay, bisexual and
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          2  transgender students who were in schools that had

          3  policies or who knew their school had a policy, had

          4  absenteeism rates that were 40% lower than students

          5  who did not have such a policy.

          6                 When the Chancellor asked us directly

          7  what he could do to make a difference, we made it

          8  very clear to put in place a clear policy and

          9  communicate it to everyone because we know

         10  absenteeism rates drop dramatically when students

         11  know they will be protected.  We followed that up

         12  with a memo to the Chancellor asking for his

         13  explicit support of this bill, which was not

         14  forthcoming today.  We were also very clear with the

         15  Chancellor what is not working in New York City's

         16  public schools and what is not working is what is

         17  happening right now.

         18                 When you look at the subset of New

         19  York students from the GLSEN National School Climate

         20  Survey, the numbers were astounding.  Students in

         21  New York public schools, 98% of them hear "that's so

         22  gay" frequently at their school as a derogatory

         23  comment.  92% of them hear "faggot" or "dyke"

         24  frequently at their school as a derogatory comment.

         25  Rates that are both higher than the national
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          2  average.  And people say why does this matter? Well,

          3  first of all, it matters because only 13% of the

          4  time do teachers intervene when such language is

          5  used.  Students obviously find it upsetting.  65% of

          6  the students say that they find it very upsetting

          7  and, in fact, students who are routinely exposed to

          8  harassing behaviors have grade point averages that

          9  are a full letter grade lower than students who are

         10  not exposed to that kind of behavior.

         11                 Why does this bill matter?  Because

         12  the harassment is prevalent in our schools.  Our

         13  schools are not stopping it and it is driving the

         14  grade point averages of our students down.

         15                 And in that same meeting, I have to

         16  say, obviously, our focus is on lesbian, gay,

         17  bisexual, transgendered students.  I heard stories

         18  from Muslim students at Stuyves. Who'd been harassed

         19  after September 11th and blamed for the destruction

         20  that was a few blocks from their school.  I heard

         21  students who were Asian- American who had been

         22  slammed against walls out of schools.  There were

         23  many, many different kinds of students who related

         24  their stories of harassment.

         25                 If here in New York City we cannot

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  teach the fundamental tenet of democracy, which is

          3  that you must respect all of your fellow citizens in

          4  our public schools, what is the future of our city

          5  and our nation?  This act will ensure that all

          6  parents, including Council Member Moskowitz, will

          7  know that respect for all is written into the law of

          8  this City and it is taught along with reading,

          9  writing and 'rithmetic in the City's school.  I urge

         10  you to take action immediately on this and I hope

         11  that you will pass the bill out of Committee today.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         13  very, very much.  We have been joined by Council

         14  Member Koppell of the Bronx, Council Member Leroy

         15  Comrie from Queens, Council Member Liu from Queens,

         16  Council Member DeBlasio from Brooklyn, Council

         17  Member Yassky from Brooklyn and Council Member

         18  McMahon from Staten Island.  We are going -- oh, I'm

         19  sorry, Council Member Jackson, I apologize, from

         20  Manhattan.

         21                 We are going to act now and, in fact,

         22  we have a quorum and we are going to take a vote if

         23  the Clerk is here.  Just so everyone's clear, the

         24  hearing will not end after we take the vote, but

         25  there are competing meetings going on and we need a
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          2  quorum here.

          3                 THE CLERK:  Chairperson Moskowitz?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I vote aye.

          5

          6                 THE CLERK:  Council Member Comrie?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  May I be

          8  excused, Madam Chair?  May I be excused to explain

          9  my vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Of course.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I want to

         12  congratulate Council Member Gerson and yourself and

         13  the members of the Education Committee for taking up

         14  this matter.  I do, I am concerned about all

         15  students and the effect of harassment and bullying

         16  on children's attitudes and the attitudes of the

         17  entire school faculty when there is consistent

         18  harassment and bullying.  As the speakers have just

         19  said, it does impact on the child's emotions.  It

         20  also impacts on the tone and the discipline for the

         21  entire school when there is a child in the school

         22  that is consistently being allowed to return to the

         23  school even after they are known to be a harasser.

         24  And I hope that this bill, once it's completed and

         25  done, will make it clear that this opportunity
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          2  should not be tolerated by anyone in the public

          3  schools and also that it does focus on harassment in

          4  all forms so that we can protect all our children in

          5  school. The school should be a safe environment, a

          6  nurturing environment, an environment where people

          7  should be free to express their personality, their

          8  individualism with dignity. I vote aye.

          9                 THE CLERK:  Council Member DeBlasio?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO:  Madam

         11  Chair, permission to explain my vote?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO:  I also want

         14  to thank you and Council Member Gerson and all my

         15  colleagues. And I just want to speak very briefly as

         16  a public school parent and a former Community School

         17  Board member.  What happens, and you see it every

         18  day in New York City public education, tremendous

         19  positive things happen, good work happens, children

         20  move forward, but we don't give enough emphasis to

         21  protecting our children and protecting the

         22  atmosphere in which they learn.  It's something that

         23  we have to constantly work on.  I see it with some

         24  of the best principals and some of the best

         25  teachers, the ability to bring a positive and
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          2  tolerant and embracing atmosphere into their work.

          3  But I know it's not universal enough.  And this is

          4  exactly what legislation is supposed to do.  It's

          5  not only supposed to change the practical dynamic on

          6  the run, it's supposed to change the atmosphere,

          7  change the priorities, provide leadership, send a

          8  message, convince everyone throughout the school

          9  system, whatever their personal views or their

         10  strengths and weaknesses, that this is a priority in

         11  the eyes of the City.  This is a priority in every

         12  single neighborhood of the City.

         13                 So I want to thank you.  This is

         14  ground breaking legislation and thank you very much.

         15                 I vote aye.

         16                 THE CLERK:  Council Member Jackson?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.

         18                 THE CLERK:  Council Member Koppell?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Opportunity

         20  to explain my vote, please?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I certainly

         23  support the legislation.  I'm a co- sponsor, I'm

         24  pleased that we're doing this.  Harassment is a very

         25  serious problem in the schools and anything that can
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          2  be done to both call attention to it and to

          3  alleviate it should be done.  I was impressed with a

          4  few of the comments made by the Teachers' Union

          5  representative and I know that after the bill leaves

          6  the Committee there still might be an opportunity

          7  for amendment, and I just would call to your

          8  attention, Madam Chair and to the staff, some of

          9  those comments.  Some may be impossible to

         10  accomplish because of City Charter limitations and

         11  what we can do but, nonetheless, I think we should

         12  take a look at that before it goes to the floor.

         13                 I vote aye.

         14                 THE CLERK:  Council Member Liu?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Madam Chair,

         16  permission to explain my vote.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Yes, of

         18  course.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I am

         20  disappointed to have seen the testimony from the

         21  Department of Education. It's almost as if this is

         22  not a real problem that our students are facing

         23  today and have been facing for years and years.  The

         24  problem of bullying and much more than just general

         25  bullying, but bullying where victims are selected
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          2  based on their race or national origin or language

          3  ability or sexual orientation or religious beliefs,

          4  that's -- bullying already is evil enough, but when

          5  it's based on these criteria, it makes it that much

          6  more difficult for the students to deal with, for

          7  entire groups of students to deal with and certainly

          8  difficult for the families.  I have, unfortunately,

          9  had cases of students being not only bullied, but

         10  being beaten severely and having to be hospitalized

         11  and then when requesting a safety transfer from the

         12  school being denied by the Department of Education.

         13  Those are instances that are happening not a few

         14  years, not a long time ago, but even within the last

         15  couple of months.  So this is a serious problem that

         16  the Department of Education needs to deal with

         17  immediately and they're certainly not going to

         18  successfully deal with this problem by opposing this

         19  very common- sense measure as put forth by Council

         20  Member Alan Gerson and so I certainly urge the rest

         21  of my fellow Committee members to vote aye on this

         22  measure.

         23                 Madam Chair, I realize that we are

         24  voting on this now, but we have important testimony

         25  still to be heard from parents and students who have
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          2  actually experienced the kind of difficulties that

          3  we're trying to forestall through this legislation.

          4  So I proudly vote aye on this and thank you for

          5  holding this hearing and ask that we pay full

          6  attention to the witnesses that are appearing before

          7  us in the next hour.  Thank you.

          8                 THE CLERK:  Council Member Yassky?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Aye.

         10                 THE CLERK:  The vote stands at seven

         11  in the affirmative, no negative and no abstention,

         12  and the vote remains open.  Please sign the reports.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Madam Chair,

         15  may I be recognized for a brief comment?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         17  very much. And I will be very brief because I do

         18  want to hear the remaining witnesses, the students,

         19  the educators, the experts.  Your testimony remains

         20  important because from this Committee hearing this

         21  bill will go to the full Council and your testimony

         22  will be on the record for that.  And we also still

         23  have representatives of the Department of Education

         24  present and they need to hear what you have to say.

         25                 I just want to thank all of my
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          2  colleagues.  I want to thank this Committee.  I want

          3  to thank all 37 co-sponsors of this bill and one of

          4  the prime co-sponsors, Council Member Christine

          5  Quinn, and once again, Madam Chair, you for your

          6  leadership in holding this hearing and your support

          7  in pulling together this bill.  I have no doubt, for

          8  the reasons I stated earlier, this bill will mark a

          9  major step forward in the lives to protect the

         10  safety and dignity of all young people, to prevent

         11  these terrible practices which should not be allowed

         12  in and of themselves and, as Council Member Liu

         13  pointed out, to prevent a bad situation from

         14  escalating to an even worse, horrendous situation of

         15  horrendous violence.

         16                 This is important.  We must get it

         17  passed.  I say this again to the Administration

         18  representatives present, we must get a bill passed

         19  and we hope we can work with you to do so.

         20                 So, again, thank you all very much.

         21  I want to emphasize the true authors of this bill

         22  are the young people present here and those who

         23  could not be here and the organizations, the

         24  parents, teachers, administrators who care about

         25  these young people, the different organizations,
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          2  PFLAG, GLSEN and the other organizations who've

          3  testified and work.  So this bill and this vote is

          4  really your victory.  It's because of your efforts

          5  and, as I said earlier, you are to be congratulated

          6  for your courage and tenacity.  And finally, I would

          7  be remiss if I did not acknowledge the good work,

          8  Madam Chair, of the staff of your Committee, your

          9  counsel and your analyst, Mark Goldey and Niket

         10  Mull, and the Chief of Staff of my office who has

         11  worked very hard on this, Dirk McCall, and our

         12  Education Policy Coordinator, Mr. David Feiner.  But

         13  truly, this is a collaborative effort.  The

         14  community, the students, the 37 co-sponsors, all of

         15  us, to make progress for all of our kids and all

         16  young people.  And from this city as an example to

         17  the rest of the country and beyond.  Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         20  We've been joined by Council Member Helen Foster,

         21  who wishes to vote.

         22                 THE CLERK:  Council Member Foster?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Aye.

         24                 THE CLERK:  The vote now stands at

         25  eight in the affirmative, no negative and no
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          2  abstentions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you so

          4  very, very much.  I want to thank each of you for

          5  your testimony. If I could just ask, Mr. Jennings,

          6  if we could, if you could share with the Committee a

          7  copy of the follow- up memo that you did after the

          8  meeting it would be helpful to us.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR JENNINGS:

         10  Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  That would be

         12  great. Thank you so very, very much.

         13                 We're now going to hear from the

         14  parents and students.  Ethan -- and we'll need some

         15  more chairs if I could ask the Sergeant- of- Arms to

         16  bring two more chairs.  Ethan Lowell Haymowitz,

         17  Sarah Tobias, Kyle Harmon, Liliya Kane, Martin Kim,

         18  Bo Li and Andy Zhou.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Madam Chair,

         20  as these witnesses take their seats, just a

         21  correction. There are in fact 44 co-sponsors of this

         22  bill, I'm very proud to announce.  I also want to

         23  emphasize our gratitude to the Speaker of the City

         24  Council, Speaker Gifford Miller for his leadership

         25  and his support of this bill and his leadership on
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          2  progress on all matters relating to human rights and

          3  dignity.  Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Welcome.  I

          5  would -- again, we appreciate, obviously, having the

          6  written testimony for the record, but I would urge

          7  you to speak from the heart and we've heard a lot of

          8  testimony and I find it sometimes more effective to

          9  just tell us what you know or what your concerns are

         10  or what your experience has been. Why don't we start

         11  in the order in which I called you and we can go

         12  from there.  If you would just identify your name

         13  for the record and if you have a particular

         14  affiliation or a school or any other identifying

         15  characteristics you want to give us, that would be

         16  helpful.

         17                 MR. HAYMOWITZ:  Hi.  My name is Ethan

         18  Lowell Haymowitz.  I'm a social worker.  I'm a

         19  student at Columbia University.  I'm an intern at

         20  Middle School 302 in the Bronx and I'm the founder

         21  and Program Coordinator of Natalie (phonetic)

         22  Children of New York City, a program serving

         23  children who are gender different and their

         24  families.  I'm here to testify on behalf of the

         25  gender different children of New York City and to
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          2  tell you a bit about their experiences in the school

          3  environment.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Excuse me,

          5  sir, could I just ask you to pull the microphone up

          6  just a tiny bit?

          7                 MR. HAYMOWITZ:  Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

          9                 MR. HAYMOWITZ:  I will do so by

         10  sharing with you a bit about the experiences of one

         11  of my clients, a ten year old boy to whom I will

         12  refer as Geraldo.  Geraldo is a Hispanic male in the

         13  fifth grade.  He's the years old.  He's Puerto Rican

         14  and good humoredly describes himself as Puerto

         15   "Rrrrican."  He speaks quickly and with a sharp

         16  accent on the S.  He is exceptionally well- dressed

         17  for a boy his age. While his peers most often don

         18  the latest loose- fitting styles, Geraldo can be

         19  found wearing a regularly- pressed, fitted, white

         20  jacket zipped all the way to the top and a tan PK

         21  polo beneath and khaki brown slacks which are always

         22  creased with precision at the front of the thighs.

         23  His hair is long, wavy and always combed neatly

         24  back.  He's affectionate, charming and sweet around

         25  female interns and staff and appears to be the same
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          2  around males, only much more slow to warm up.

          3                 During our first session he indicated

          4  to me that he had no friends and that his mom was

          5  the closest thing he had to a best friend because in

          6  the school environment he is picked on and teased

          7  relentlessly. Geraldo avoids traditionally masculine

          8  activities and is intrigued by all things feminine,

          9  although he tries with varied success to keep his

         10  feminine interests a secret. Geraldo was referred to

         11  me because he had just transferred into Middle

         12  School 302 and immediately ran into trouble with his

         13  classmates.  According to his teachers, he was being

         14  called "faggot" by several of the students in his

         15  class. This was on his first day of classes in

         16  school.

         17                 More recently, I walked into the

         18  Guidance Office to see Geraldo sitting in a chair

         19  being interrogated by support staff.  They wanted

         20  him to explain why he left class, refusing to

         21  return.  He sat there with his arms folded, staring

         22  into the wall as one of the school social workers

         23  attempted to make eye contact with him, but to no

         24  avail.  When I got there, he ran outside of the

         25  room, stood in a corner, folded his arms and again
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          2  stared into space. When I invited him to tell me

          3  what happened in class, he told me that he got into

          4  a fight with a girl because she had called him a

          5   "faggot" again.

          6                 At this point tears began to stream

          7  down his face and his voice began to speak rapidly

          8  as if there was an urgency in his words.  The

          9  torture that this child had experienced had reached

         10  a breaking point yet again.  It was too much for him

         11  and he didn't even feel safe being in class.

         12                 Just the other day Geraldo was moved

         13  into a new classroom.  He refused to go in and

         14  instead sat with the Dean for several hours because

         15  in his new class was one of the bullies who liked to

         16  pick on him during gym class.  So he felt unsafe

         17  going into a new classroom basically because there

         18  was one of his tormentors there.

         19                 While most recognize that Geraldo is

         20  suffering, few of the school staff know how to deal

         21  with the problems that arise as a result of his

         22  gender different behaviors.  Because his behavior is

         23  typically gendered, it seems clear that many school

         24  staff believe that he deserves what he gets.  They

         25  believe that if he does not change his behavior, his
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          2  maltreatment is justified.  This is an attitude

          3  that's very common among all professionals.  Even if

          4  they do not hold negative attitudes towards his

          5  gender difference, some of the most well- meaning

          6  teachers and administrators are still confused by

          7  Geraldo's behavior and do not know how to respond

          8  effectively.  In this way, whether their beliefs

          9  about Geraldo's gender variant behaviors are

         10  negative or neutral, their inaction legitimizes his

         11  continued abuse.

         12                 Thus, to ensure Geraldo's safety at

         13  Middle School 302, we social workers have initiated

         14  a series of diversity workshops in educating school

         15  staff about the nature and meaning of gender

         16  variance in children.  Gender variant children are

         17  those who are not identified as gay but who happen

         18  to be gender, atypically gendered as far as their

         19  interests and behaviors go.

         20                 Why should Geraldo and other boys

         21  like him continue to feel unsafe in school?  Why

         22  should he miss one day of class because he feels

         23  threatened and vulnerable in a space that is meant

         24  to nurture and cultivate his emotional and

         25  intellectual growth?  It is my personal belief that
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          2  the Dignity for All Students Act has an important

          3  role to play in Geraldo's safety by creating a

          4  protected category for gender expression.  Even

          5  though he cannot be present with us today, certainly

          6  his tears carry some weight in this room.

          7                 With Geraldo in mind, I urge you,

          8  members of the Council, to support the protection of

          9  all students and all school staff and vote

         10  affirmative on the passage of the Dignity Act which

         11  you have.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         13                 MS. TOBIAS:  My name is Sarah Tobias

         14  and I am the lesbian parent of a third grader in the

         15  New York City public school system.

         16                 First of all, I'd like to commend

         17  Council Member Alan Gerson for introducing the

         18  Dignity for All Schools Act and the City Council

         19  Education Committee, especially Eva Moskowitz, for

         20  organizing this hearing today.

         21                 If passed, the Dignity for All

         22  Schools Act, could lead to increased safety in our

         23  schools and an enhanced learning experience for all

         24  of our children.

         25                 My eight year old daughter attends a
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          2  small, welcoming public elementary school.  There

          3  are gay teachers in the school.  There are children

          4  from gay and lesbian families attending.  Members of

          5  the teaching staff are warm, responsive and

          6  committed to the wellbeing of their students. In

          7  short, it's the type of school where I would have

          8  expected my daughter to be safe, but she isn't.

          9                 About a month and a half ago my

         10  daughter had a direct and traumatic experience upon

         11  the phobia in the classroom.  Another child made a

         12  derogatory comment about gay men and my daughter

         13  confronted him, trying to hold him accountable.

         14   "Did you know my mom's a lesbian," she said? "You

         15  abused my family."  For her courage my daughter got

         16  a mouthful of hate speech and more.  She was told

         17  all sorts of things including the fact that her

         18  family is disgusting.  At the end of the day when I

         19  picked her up she disintegrated into tears.  She was

         20  devastated by the virulence of her classmate's

         21  reactions.  My daughter says that the incident left

         22  her feeling angry.  It left her feeling upset and

         23  disappointed as well as scared for her own safety.

         24  And I stress this.  She was worried that, "The other

         25  child," and here I quote her words directly, "might
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          2  start punching and hitting me because my mom's a

          3  lesbian and he feels this is so disgusting.  He

          4  might feel so disgusted that he might hurt me."  My

          5  daughter is eight.  My daughter now reports that she

          6  encounters homophobia in the classroom almost every

          7  day.

          8                 Last week a couple of kids threatened

          9  her by saying they would disclose the fact that her

         10  mom is a lesbian, something they clearly perceive to

         11  be bad, to the whole school.  My daughter worries

         12  that the younger kids in particular will not

         13  understand and that she will be stigmatized and left

         14  without friends in consequence.

         15                 This is why the components of DASA

         16  New York City that address the classroom culture are

         17  so important. DASA stipulates that it will create

         18  guidelines to encourage empathy and discourage

         19  harassment in the classroom.  It is imperative to

         20  foster this empathy among students, while also

         21  letting everybody know that bullying and harassment

         22  are absolutely unacceptable and will not be

         23  tolerated in our schools.  It is also imperative to

         24  address explicitly the right of children from gay

         25  and lesbian- headed households, as well as the
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          2  children who are, or who appear to be GLBT

          3  themselves to be safe in school.

          4                 Changing classroom culture is

          5  especially important because lots of homophobic

          6  abuse in school happens when the teachers are not

          7  around.  I repeatedly asked my daughter where her

          8  teachers are when she encounters homophobia.  They

          9  are invariably out of the earshot.  When I tell them

         10  about my daughter's experiences, they are both

         11  concerned and appalled.  Although they are able to

         12  address individual incidents of harassment quite

         13  competently, at least in their aftermath, they have

         14  extremely limited experience dealing with homophobia

         15  in the classroom. Moreover, they have never devised

         16  a systematic structural approach to combat

         17  harassment, something which is sorely needed at this

         18  juncture.  DASA's passage would help this by

         19  mandating that the school representative receive

         20  anti harassment training and, in turn, train other

         21  teachers in the school.

         22                 Some data here to back up the

         23  importance of DASA New York City specifically.

         24  According to the census, census 2000, there are

         25  46,490 same- sex couple households in Ne York State.

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2    One- third of all lesbian couples and one fifth of

          3  gay couples reported living in a household with

          4  children.  New York City has a higher percentage of

          5  same- sex couples than any other city in the nation.

          6    Although no census data specifies in particular

          7  how many gay parents exist in New York City, it is

          8  likely that the percentage of same- sex couple

          9  households with children living in the five boroughs

         10  is even higher in the City than in the State as a

         11  whole.

         12                 Many children, including those from

         13  LGBT families, also experience harassment because of

         14  race, ethnicity, religion or disability, among many

         15  other reasons.

         16                 Thus, DASA's passage could

         17  potentially enhance the safety and wellbeing of an

         18  enormous amount of our children.

         19                 Our children need to feel safe in

         20  order to learn.  Like her peers, my daughter is

         21  grappling with anxiety surrounding the third grade

         22  test, but her anxiety about the test is finite, it

         23  will stop.  She is much more concerned about

         24  homophobic bullying in the classroom, which she says

         25  feels like it will never stop unless things change.
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          2  Please pass the Dignity in All Schools Act to give

          3  my daughter and the many, many other children like

          4  her an equal opportunity for an education that is

          5  free of harassment and free of discrimination.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

          8  Kyle Harmon?

          9                 MR. HARMON:  My name is Kyle Harmon.

         10  I'm an alumni of the Christopher Columbus Chapter of

         11  the Council for Unity.  I pretty much represent that

         12  people that you're talking about.

         13                 I stand on both sides of the issue,

         14  from the bullying and being bullied part.  I've

         15  never had problems with homosexuality, I'm

         16  heterosexual, it's not my issue or my conflict here.

         17    When I was younger, I was constantly harassed

         18  because of my race, because of my looks, my

         19  appearance.  In the school I was robbed, I was

         20  jumped, I was beaten and, quite frankly, at one

         21  point in my life I got sick of it and I turned

         22  violent.  I joined the gang called the Crips.  I

         23  started doing all kinds of things that I would never

         24  imagine myself doing, being that I'm in a school

         25  building to learn and not to learn the consequences
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          2  of my actions, especially when they're false.

          3                 I have met, through my working with

          4  the Council for Unity, because I'm now also a

          5  faculty member, I have met various students who have

          6  dealt with the issues I've heard brought up here

          7  today, everything from the homosexual issues to that

          8  of which were ethnically related. Homosexual

          9  students in the school that I work in, Christopher

         10  Columbus, they have probably the hardest life or

         11  task in the school, which is surviving, much less

         12  learning, inside the building because they're

         13  constantly harassed, not only by their peers and

         14  members of the school, but staff. Staff much too

         15  often has comments towards them, towards their

         16  femininity or their sexuality or the behavior of

         17  what a real male is, or quote, unquote what a real

         18  male is supposed to behave like, and also the

         19  Pakistani or Bangladeshi, any student that is not

         20  common to what you would normally grow up with.

         21  When I was in school I constantly had problems with

         22  the Albanian students.  When I moved to the bronx I

         23  didn't even know what an Albanian was.

         24                 There's a huge misunderstanding

         25  between races and I do blame that on the schools

                                                            96

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  because they should be more educated, the students

          3  should be more educated towards issues involving

          4  race, and I feel that that would resolve a lot of

          5  the problems that we deal with today.

          6                 As far as my violent self, working

          7  with the Council for Unity who mentors and teaches

          8  and constantly educates us on how to react towards

          9  violence towards us or to get our point across,

         10  because for so long I had a message to get across

         11  and for so long I didn't even know a Board like

         12  yourselves existed.  So long I never knew that I

         13  could speak and be heard and actually have something

         14  done about the things that were going on around me.

         15  Because every time something would happen, it would

         16  just happen and be left there.  And the only time I

         17  would ever see a police officer is when he was

         18  harassing me.

         19                 So I'm here basically on behalf of

         20  the Council for Unity and programs like itself and

         21  anybody that is willing to support the ending of

         22  harassment in our schools.  It is not fair that any

         23  student should have to wake up at six in the morning

         24  to be harassed every day. Every student deserves the

         25  opportunity to learn.  Every student deserves the
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          2  opportunity to be happy in their school atmosphere

          3  and every student also, in my opinion, deserves to

          4  know people like you.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

          6  Liliya Kane?

          7                 MS. KANE:  (Difficult to discern due

          8  to dialect in language.)  Hi.  My name is Liliya

          9  Kane and I'm here on behalf of the Council for

         10  Unity.  I would like to let everybody know that

         11  there is an epidemic on the rise. It drives people

         12  to commit suicide, to join gangs.  Not only does it

         13  scar people emotionally and physically, but it also

         14  has a tendency to ruin lives.  The name of this

         15  epidemic is bullying and it has affected me.

         16                 For the first three years that I was

         17  in America, I came here from Russia (phonetic),

         18  nobody really bothered me.  Maybe because I didn't

         19  really care what people thought of me or maybe it

         20  was because my elementary school was quite strict so

         21  the potential bullies didn't have a chance to

         22  exercise their power.  Once I graduated and entered

         23  seventh grade at another school everything changed.

         24  The atmosphere of the school was hostile and

         25  unfriendly. For the first couple of months I had
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          2  friends around me but after about a couple of months

          3  they stabbed me in the back and threw me to the

          4  sharks.  The rest of the class made a task every day

          5  to make fun of me and harass me.  They made up games

          6  such as one where they tried to see who could throw

          7  the most spitballs and paper balls at me in the

          8  least amount of time.  They did wonderful and so

          9  many things such as steal my dairy, making

         10  photocopies of it and distributing it to the class.

         11  They even paid a boy from my class to go on a date

         12  with me and, when I refused to go, they threatened

         13  to beat me up.  Every day there was something new

         14  and something more horrible.  I was embarrassed to

         15  tell my parents about what was going on in school.

         16  The teachers really couldn't care less.  I couldn't

         17   -- I had no friends to turn to.  I grew to hate

         18  myself, especially my accent and my appearance,

         19  because that's what my classmates made the most fun

         20  of.

         21                 The following year I transferred to

         22  another school because I refused to put up with any

         23  more bullying from my former classmates.  Since I

         24  was the only white girl in my eighth grade class, I

         25  was automatically subjected to some harassment.
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          2  However, the next year was different because I was

          3  used to it.  So what I was subjected to in my eight

          4  grade class, it was usual to me.  But it was

          5  different because now I grew accustomed to it and I

          6  fight back.

          7                 The humiliation and torture that I

          8  had to endure during seventh grade has definitely

          9  left numerous scars.  I grew to hate everything that

         10  had to do with my nationality and my culture.  I was

         11  paranoid and couldn't bring myself to completely

         12  trust anybody.  I had extremely low self- esteem and

         13  I refused to speak in public.

         14                 There are various high school

         15  programs that deal with bullying and harassment such

         16  as Spark (phonetic), however, there are very few

         17  anti- bullying programs in junior high schools and

         18  elementary schools.  The Council for Unity is one of

         19  the very few programs that deals with elementary,

         20  junior high school and high schools, all at the same

         21  time.

         22  By the style of the concepts of family unity, self-

         23  esteem and empowerment upon the students, the

         24  Council for Unity helps victims regain their

         25  confidence and self- esteem and also helps the
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          2  bullies become more positive and productive people.

          3                 I was involved with the Council for

          4  Unity since my freshman year of high school and I

          5  can definitely say that through my participation in

          6  various extension programs, activities and events, I

          7  became a more mature responsible person.  In the

          8  past three years my self- esteem and confidence

          9  improved a lot, if not soared.  I regained pride in

         10  my culture and my nationality.

         11                 MS. HSN:  (Difficult to discern due

         12  to dialect and language.)  I'm Teresa Ying Hsn,

         13  Asian- American Communications.  This topic is my

         14  heart and my life for 18 years.  I have to

         15  complement Mr. Gerson for this and the Chairman,

         16  everybody has just voted on.

         17                 We are, Asian- American students here

         18  are the victim of the victims in this whole big

         19  thing and I'm glad that I have a chance to speak

         20  today because everywhere I speak people will say

         21  it's too complex.  You know, oh, you're Asians.  You

         22  know, just everybody just ignore me.  I been

         23  speaking for 18 years with tears and nobody ever

         24  listened.

         25                 The reason for -- many thinks, not
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          2  because our group, our ethnic group are very, very

          3  quiet.  We are the invisible minority.  But when our

          4  immigrant students got picked on in schools, the

          5  reason is because our cultural, the Confusiusim is,

          6  as you know, if you do something wrong, that's why

          7  people pick you up.  If you show, you know, money

          8  people love you.  So in that case, our kids being

          9  beaten up, pushed down the stairs, smacked for

         10  nothing, you know, and jumped on, crack at the

         11  heads.  They never say anything. First thing is they

         12  feel guilty.  Second thing is they feel lose face.

         13  They don't know how to fight back.

         14                 I'm not going to talk about what

         15  happens for 18 years, but I'm just going to relate

         16  one case which happen last year, September 22nd.  A

         17  big bully in the junior high school going to high

         18  school, already be hitting people, Asian kids,

         19  because the reason that they never fight back.

         20  For so many -- four years.  So finally in high

         21  school in Brooklyn, I'm not going to mention the

         22  school, a group of 50 Chinese kids or Korean kids

         23  altogether jumped on him.  They jumped him badly.  I

         24  do not condone the behavior, but in jumping -- you

         25  have to understand for four years everybody been
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          2  bullied by him on a daily basis.  What happened when

          3  Chinese kids try to get even, you're dead.

          4                 We have a New York Times or other

          5  paper saying we are against, so Brooklyn's DA Office

          6  have again prosecutor to prosecutor the wrong

          7  people.  They got the three young kids.  And the

          8  family, you know, last time Anglos.  Now, as far as

          9   -- I talk to students.  The police station does not

         10  do a fancy job.  They have other ethnic groups

         11  fighting in the street.  Somebody broke the head,

         12  the police say, "Okay, that's it.  That person

         13  charges."  The Asian kids, you fight back, you're

         14  dead.

         15                 Second thing I want to mention, the

         16  curriculum is important.  I was a engineer for many

         17  years ago at the Central Board (phonetic) to

         18  establish the multi cultural education and it is

         19  very, very -- it's not feel good curriculum.  For

         20  God's sake, if you don't feel safe, if you are in

         21  school every day, you could be jumped and no voice.

         22  I mean, how can you learn?  Yeah, I know, our

         23  philosophy is to endure, endure, endure to no end.

         24  Till the graves?  We've got to fight back and I

         25  think that this bill, this Act, hopefully will raise
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          2  the attention to all people that we are the victim

          3  of victims.  It's time for we are being heard.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

          6  very, very much.  We are, as I said, short on time.

          7  We're going to hear from a group of students at two

          8  different high schools. So we thank you very, very

          9  much.  If you haven't already, we'd appreciate

         10  having copies of your written testimony for the

         11  record.  The transcripts of these proceedings are

         12  made public.  So thank you very much.

         13                 For the Sergeant- of- Arms we're

         14  going to need a few more chairs.  I think we have

         15  students in the front row.  Thank you very much.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just, Madam

         17  Chair, as they take their seats, in the interest of

         18  time I'm going to thank all of the witnesses and all

         19  of the panelists collectively at this moment rather

         20  than after each set of testimony.  For those who've

         21  just testified and those who are about to, let me

         22  just thank you for coming forward, for your courage,

         23  for your tenacity.  We know it's not easy to speak

         24  of these personal experiences, but it's worse not

         25  to. In our unity there is strength and in the
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          2  progress we will make because you have come forward,

          3  we will overcome.  So thank you all very, very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Welcome and

          5  thank you for being here.  If I could ask you to

          6  just be as brief and to the point as possible, I

          7  would appreciate it very much, and if you could

          8  state your name for the record.  Thank you. The

          9  light has to be off for the microphone to be on.

         10                 MR. KIM:  (Difficult to discern due

         11  to dialect and language.)  Hi.  My name's Martin

         12  Kim.  My friend Daniel Kim and James Park.  We are

         13  students at Bayside High School.

         14                 Let's talk about the incident that

         15  happened on March 1st.  After eighth period school

         16  were ended, we were going to the bus stop and then

         17  we saw a whole bunch of little kids going to the

         18  back of the park.  And then you know how teenagers

         19  are, they like to watch fights, you know. So we went

         20  to go watching two Caucasian kids, students were

         21  fighting.  And we were just watching and the uncle,

         22  one of the Caucasian's uncles came.  Without

         23  breaking the fight he just screams clinging

         24  (phonetic) one on one.  You know, things got out of

         25  hand and one of the other Caucasian student's

                                                            105

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  friends jumped in and things got really out of hand

          3  and the uncle start hitting the Asians for no

          4  reason.

          5                 And then my friend, Danny Kim, got

          6  hit in the face.  So we just pushed him out of the

          7  way and my friend, my other friend Andrew, his

          8  shoulder popped.  So we took him to the bench away

          9  from the fight and we're just helping him out, try

         10  to calm him down because he was screaming and

         11  everything.  So it was only five of us, you know,

         12  and two Bayside students.  But these are the main,

         13  you know.

         14                 So suddenly, like 20 minutes later,

         15  one of my friends come up to us and like you better

         16  get out of here. I'm like why?  Then they're all

         17  coming for you.  We were confused and we see 50

         18  African- Americans is coming toward us, surrounding

         19  us.  And they were saying oh, you jumped the old

         20  man, right?  We were like, no, you know, we're not

         21  looking for trouble.  You know, this is -- I don't

         22  want to fight.  And then we were just trying to help

         23  my friend up, trying to get him out of the way.  And

         24  suddenly I see my friend, all my friends getting

         25  stomped on.  I get knocked in the head and I don't
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          2  know what happened.  I just fell to the floor.  They

          3  were all stepping on me.

          4                 And then we didn't go to school

          5  Monday 'cause we were scared 'cause one of my

          6  friends that are, one of my Italian friends told me

          7  on the phone, he said there were around 30 African-

          8  Americans in front of the school.  They're asking

          9  every Asian kid were you in the fight.

         10                 And we go back to school around like

         11  a month later and then one of the Deans told us that

         12  one of the Black kids got caught with a six- inch

         13  combat knife like right after the incident happened,

         14  in that week.

         15                 So we're just -- I'm just asking if

         16  you please pass the bill because I don't think it'll

         17  make the school more safer.  It's really like, you

         18  know, they all like look at me, point at me and so

         19  it's like we're really

         20  scared something might happen later on.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         22                 MR. LI:  (Difficult to discern due to

         23  dialect in language.)  My name is Bo Li.  This my

         24  friend, Andy Zhou.  We are all students in John

         25  Bowne High School.  We are afraid of this bill.
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          2                 Last Friday we are got injury in the

          3  school. After lunch we go with others in the

          4  hallway.  A group of people, he throw the wrap paper

          5  ball (phonetic) at my neck. Then my friends, my

          6  friend saw it.  He comes with me.  We are ask the

          7  people, is it you throw that wrap paper ball at me?

          8  And they say, so what?  They began to fight us.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Madam Chair, if

         10  I can interrupt for a second, I would encourage Bo

         11  to just give his brief comments in languages that

         12  he's comfortable with and we'll have someone

         13  translate it.  Why don't you start from the

         14  beginning because I don't think you meant to say

         15  that you were afraid of this bill.

         16                 (Mr. Li's testimony is interpreted.)

         17                 THE INTERPRETER:  My name is Bo Li.

         18  This my friend at John Bowne High School.  We're

         19  both students of John Bowne High School.  His name

         20  is Andy Zhou.

         21                 Last Friday there is a violence case

         22  happening in our school. After lunch we were on our

         23  way to catch our next class.  There was a group of

         24  African- American schoolmates throw the garbage on

         25  the back of my neck.  Andy saw it and he walk me
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          2  towards that group of student and ask them if they

          3  did it and they said yes, so what?  Then they

          4  throwed a punch at my friend Andy.  On my nose.  He

          5  got thrown punches on his face, forehead and nose

          6  and it caused five stitches in the hospital.  A

          7  group of students be chasing us and beating us until

          8  we reach the cafeteria.

          9  And they caught us.

         10                 And the school didn't want to call

         11  for ambulance 'cause they don't want to have a

         12  record with the police.  We were both sent to the

         13  nurse aide station in the school and then I told the

         14  nurse aide that I would like to go to the hospital,

         15  but the school told us that we have to inform our

         16  family first.  Then I could not have contact with my

         17  family and we waited for 30 minutes for the school

         18  to call the ambulance.  Andy's face was full of

         19  blood but the school didn't want to get involved

         20  with the police business, so they did not call the

         21  ambulance for him.

         22                 We didn't know that group of people

         23  and we don't understand why were they treated our

         24  Asian fellow students like that.  Now we are afraid

         25  to go to school. We're afraid that one day we might
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          2  be killed by them.  You never know.  Because this is

          3  not the first time.  Bo Li, it's already happen to

          4  him the second time.  The same thing happened last

          5  year, I was chased by four or five students without

          6  any reason.  They be chasing me and beating me up.

          7                 I hope please pass this bill.  Thank

          8  you.

          9                 MR. ZHOU:  I hope pass this bill,

         10  too.  Thank you.

         11                 (Chairperson Moskowitz's questions

         12  and Mr. Li's testimony are interpreted.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         14  very much. I want to ask, in both of these

         15  incidences, and I realize there are multiple, but

         16  the ones you described at length, where were the

         17  adults, where was the Dean of Students, where were

         18  teachers?  Was anyone intervening to stop what was

         19  going on?

         20                 THE INTERPRETER:  From the beginning

         21  to the end, I didn't see the Principal.  All I seen

         22  was a few security guard and a few nurses.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Did it

         24  happen, the incident, on school grounds or near the

         25  school?

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 MR. LI:  In the school, yeah.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So on the

          4  school grounds?

          5                 MR. LI:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And you could

          7  see security safety agents in your view?  They were,

          8  when you looked up, were they visible?

          9                 THE INTERPRETER:  No, not until we

         10  were chased, till we reached the cafeteria.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And in the

         12  incident that was described, in the incident you

         13  described, where were -- when the fight broke out

         14  where the uncle was and so forth, was that on school

         15  grounds and where was --

         16                 MR. LI:  It was actually across the

         17  street from school grounds.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Across the

         19  street.

         20                 MR. LI:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And is it

         22  your impression that school officials, if it's

         23  across the street, they don't have to worry about

         24  it, it's not their problem or just what's your

         25  interpretation of that?
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          2                 MR. LI:  School Deans and school

          3  security guards and officers from the police station

          4  has come to the incident but when the officers

          5  grabbed a couple of students to the ground, they

          6  just said stay on the ground and we'll let you go.

          7  And they saw us Asian students getting beaten but

          8  they didn't take any effect upon them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I mean,

         10  obviously, this is very, very troubling and I think

         11  it belies the testimony that we heard this morning

         12  from the Department of Education where there was the

         13  pretense that things are under control, that this is

         14  not a problem, that things are being taken care of,

         15  and clearly they're not.

         16                 Let me turn to my colleague, Council

         17  Member John Liu.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you, Madam

         19  Chair, for convening this particular panel.  I think

         20  it's, as I said earlier during the hearing, that

         21  this is a problem that is not in the past, it's very

         22  much alive today, and too many of our students are

         23  still dealing with this.  I think the passage of

         24  Alan Gerson's bill is a terrific step in the right

         25  direction, but none of us are under any pretense
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          2  that once this bill is enacted and implemented, that

          3  all problems that our students face in their schools

          4  will suddenly disappear.  So while these students

          5  have taken a day out of their school time to come

          6  testify in favor of this bill, we clearly need to

          7  stay on top of the Department of Education and as

          8  well as the school safety officers and the NYPD to

          9  make sure that our schools are indeed safe.

         10                 I do have a few questions.  Really, I

         11  generally know the answers to my questions but I

         12  just want to make things crystal clear for the

         13  record.  I think there will be some benefit for us

         14  in doing so.

         15                 (Council Member Liu's questions and

         16  Mr. Li's answers are interpreted.)

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I want to ask

         18  the students from John Bowne High School, Bo Li and

         19  Andy Zhou, when were you last assaulted in school?

         20                 MR. LI:  Last Friday.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Exactly what

         22  happened to you?

         23                 MR. LI:  Throw the wrap paper ball at

         24  my neck.

         25                 THE INTERPRETER:  They throw the wrap
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          2  paper ball on my neck.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I mean is it

          4  just a paper ball or is something that causes --

          5                 MR. LI:  Wrap paper ball.

          6                 THE INTERPRETER:  Dirty paper ball.

          7  Waste. Garbage.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And what about

          9  you, Andy?  How were you assaulted?

         10                 MR. ZHOU:  (Speaks in foreign

         11  language.)

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  That's too long.

         13    Simply state, what's the bandaid on your head for?

         14                 THE INTERPRETER:  They throw the

         15  punch -- okay.  After I saw what happened behind Li

         16  Bo, I walk over there, ask if they did it.  So one

         17  of the students say, yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  What's the

         19  bandaid on your head for?

         20                 THE INTERPRETER:  Then right away he

         21  throw the punch on my face.  That's the stitches to

         22  fix that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Do you have

         24  stitches on your head right now?

         25                 THE INTERPRETER:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And what caused

          3  those -- why did you need those stitches?

          4                 THE INTERPRETER:  They punched me.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  How many times?

          6                 THE INTERPRETER:  At least 20 times.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  In the face?

          8                 THE INTERPRETER:  On my face at least

          9  ten times.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Where else did

         11  they punch you?

         12                 THE INTERPRETER:  My chest, back,

         13  shoulder.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  What date did

         15  they punch you?

         16                 THE INTERPRETER:  April 23rd, last

         17  Friday.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And where did

         19  they punch you, were you standing in the schoolyard

         20  or in the cafeteria or where?  Exactly where.

         21                 THE INTERPRETER:  The hallway right

         22  outside of cafeteria.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And do you know

         24  the students that hit you?

         25                 MR. LI:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Have you

          3  reported them to the Principal?

          4                 THE INTERPRETER:  No, I didn't get a

          5  chance to.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Did you report

          7  it to any of the staff at the school?

          8                 THE INTERPRETER:  Security.  Yes, I

          9  did.  And the police, also, took the report and the

         10  hospital also took the report.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And Bo Li, what

         12  happened to you last year?

         13                 THE INTERPRETER:  Last year I was

         14  walking in the street, without any reason I was

         15  attacked by four or five people.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  What did they

         17  do?

         18                 THE INTERPRETER:  They pull on me,

         19  they hit me on my back, on my head.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And was this

         21  outside the school?

         22                 THE INTERPRETER:  Inside of the

         23  school.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Where inside the

         25  school?
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          2                 THE INTERPRETER:  By the staircase.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And did you

          4  require any medical care?

          5                 THE INTERPRETER:  I didn't know

          6  anything that time.  I did not ask for anything.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I have some

          8  follow- up questions.  Just a little bit longer,

          9  Madam Chair.  Thank you.  For Martin Kin and Danny

         10  Kim.

         11                 Why don't you state for the record

         12  how many times you think you were hit, physically

         13  hit.  Speak into the microphone.

         14                 MR. DANNY KIM:  Around six times the

         15  back of the head, sir.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Martin?

         17                 MR. MARTIN KIM:  Around like ten.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  How about your

         19  friend?

         20  State your name for the record.

         21                 MR. PARK:  My name's James Park.  I

         22  got hit around like 20 times.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And where were

         24  you hit?

         25                 MR. PARK:  My head, my back, my face.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I'm sorry, what

          3  location were you hit?

          4                 MR. PARK:  In the back of the head,

          5  my        back --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I'm sorry,

          7  inside the school or outside the school?

          8                 MR. PARK:  Outside the school.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  But directly in

         10  front of the school?

         11                 MR. PARK:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  On the same

         13  street as the -- what street is the school located

         14  on?

         15                 MR. PARK:  Corporal Kennedy Street

         16  (phonetic).

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Say it again.

         18                 MR. PARK:  Corporal Kennedy Street.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And what --

         20                 MR. PARK:  And 32nd Avenue.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  That's the

         22  street that the school is located on?

         23                 MR. PARK:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And what street

         25  were you hit on?
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          2                 MR. PARK:  Corporal Kennedy Street.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So right in

          4  front of the school.

          5                 MR. PARK:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And did you

          7  request a transfer?

          8                 MR. PARK:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Who requested a

         10  transfer?

         11                 MR. PARK:  Me, Danny, Martin and --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  All three of you

         13  requested a transfer.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'm sorry,

         15  could I just ask you to speak into the mike.  A

         16  little closer, just bring it closer.  It's just a

         17  little hard to hear you.

         18                 MR. PARK:  It was Martin's parents,

         19  my parents --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Get closer to

         21  the microphone, two inches away.

         22                 MR. PARK:  As I say, Martin's

         23  parents, James Park's parents and my parents, we

         24  require, we ask for a safety transfer.  The school

         25  said they will do the safety transfer but when they
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          2  sent it to the Board of Ed they said we're

          3  participants when we try to avoid the fights.  We

          4  also talked to the 111th Precinct, and they write in

          5  the statement that it was around the same amount of

          6  people, which was sort of a made- up story, and

          7  that's why I think the Board of Education denied the

          8  transfer.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So you were

         10  denied the safety transfer?

         11                 MR. PARK:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And how was

         13  that communicated to you?  Someone told you that or

         14  you got a letter?

         15                 MR. PARK:  We got a letter.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  You got a

         17  letter.

         18                 MR. PARK:  Yes, ma'am.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  It would be

         20  helpful if you could provide the Committee with a

         21  copy of that letter for us.  That would be very

         22  helpful.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Were you afraid

         24  to go back to school?

         25                 MR. PARK:  Yes, sir.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And how long did

          3  you stay out of school?

          4                 MR. PARK:  Approximately three weeks.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  What did you do

          6  during those three weeks?  Did you go to another

          7  school?

          8                 MR. PARK:  No, we tried to make the

          9  safe transfer.  We went to different schools.  We

         10  went to private schools.  We also went to different

         11  precincts to try to change the transfer, sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And this is all

         13  three of you?

         14                 MR. PARK:  Yes, sir.  And two more

         15  other people.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Martin, why

         17  don't you take the microphone.  How long did you

         18  stay out of school?

         19                 MR. MARTIN KIM:  Same thing with

         20  them, three weeks.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Three weeks.

         22  Why did you stay out of school?

         23                 MR. MARTIN KIM:  Because we were

         24  afraid to go back because my friend told me they're

         25  all looking for us and everything.  And like there's
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          2  some gang called like Bloods (phonetic) that there

          3  would be problem with because of that incident.  We

          4  were just afraid that we might get stabbed or shot.

          5  Because I remember after the fight we were going

          6  home and then I saw -- I heard one of the African

          7  Americans, wearing a red flag, screaming you're all

          8  going to get popped and so --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  What does that

         10  mean?

         11                 MR. MARTIN KIM:  That means getting

         12  shot or something like that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And why do you

         14  think that they were looking for you?

         15                 MR. MARTIN KIM:  Because I had

         16  Italian friend at school and he called me and told

         17  me like there's a lot of African- Americans like,

         18  you know, going around asking for us.  So, yeah.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Before this

         20  incident, did you feel safe at school?

         21                 MR. MARTIN KIM:  No, because we also

         22   -- like the African- Americans picked on us all the

         23  time.  They  fighting.  A group of African-

         24  Americans robbed one of the Asians for their phone.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  When you say
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          2   "they picked on us", who's "us", the three of you?

          3                 MR. MARTIN KIM:  No, like mostly

          4  Asians like in the school.  They just make fun of

          5  you and everything and you can't do anything about

          6  it because they're always in huge numbers.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  James Park,

          8  could you take the mike?  Are you back at school

          9  now?

         10                 MR. PARK:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  How long did you

         12  stay out of school?

         13                 MR. PARK:  Three weeks.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And do you feel

         15  comfortable going back to school now?

         16                 MR. PARK:  Not really.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Do you prefer to

         18  go to a different school?

         19                 MR. PARK:  Yeah.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And what have

         21  they told you?

         22                 MR. PARK:  The school?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  What has anybody

         24  told you about going to a different school?

         25                 MR. PARK:  That we got denied for a
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          2  transfer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And did you ask

          4  for that transfer?

          5                 MR. PARK:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And what did

          7  they -- who did you ask the transfer from?

          8                 MR. PARK:  The Principal.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  And what did he,

         10  he or she say?

         11                 MR. PARK:  They wrote up the safety

         12  transfer, the paperwork, and they sent it out to the

         13  Board of Ed and a week or two later we got a letter

         14  that said we all got denied.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Madam Chair, I

         16  would submit to you that there clearly is something

         17  awful going on when students realize that they are

         18  in danger in their own school, they ask for a

         19  transfer and are being denied.  A transfer for

         20  safety reasons and are still being denied.  I would

         21  ask you and your staff, and I certainly will help in

         22  any way to, even after we pass this bill, to look

         23  into exactly what is happening in our schools and

         24  why students are still being singled out, not

         25  because of their individual person, but because of,
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          2  in this case, a racial category that they're part

          3  of.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Absolutely.

          5  Let me just one other question.  Were any students

          6  suspended for what they did?

          7                 MR. PARK:  We were after our

          8  Principal told us to look through a book of ID

          9  pictures to recognize most of the American, African-

         10  Americans.  We recognized one that started

         11  everything and his name was Brandon Rogers.  He's

         12  the one who screamed out you're going to get popped

         13  and with the red flag.  So I pointed him out and the

         14  Principal is like oh, that kid is getting out of the

         15  school, he's getting suspended.  And it was, like it

         16  wasn't the first incident. He had a lot of other

         17  records in school.  Principal even said, I heard him

         18  say, oh, this kid's going to get suspended and he

         19  didn't do anything to Brandon Rogers, like not even

         20  give him like no in- house or nothing, just let him

         21  go.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And did the

         23  Principal investigate in way, did -- as far as you

         24  know, was the person who said that you're going to

         25  get popped, was that student called into the
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          2  Principal's Office for any kind      of --

          3                 MR. PARK:  No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And in your

          5  incidents, the person who punched you and was the

          6  cause of your stitches, was that student identified,

          7  was there any kind of investigation, were there any

          8  suspensions?

          9                 (Chairperson Moskowitz' question and

         10  Mr. Li's answer are translated to Mr. Li.)

         11                 THE INTERPRETER:  The school caught

         12  one student, however, we were told that both side,

         13  means including us, will be, might be suspended

         14  because the school doesn't trust our words.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  We will

         16  definitely try and look into it.  It would be

         17  helpful if you could get us a copy of the denial of

         18  the safety transfer.  I'm sure we have many more

         19  questions.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  (Council

         21  Member Gerson's question and Mr. Li's answer are

         22  translated to Mr. Li.)  Just one very brief

         23  question.  Aside from the denial of the safety

         24  transfers and the statement about the suspension of

         25  the students involved, has anyone subsequent to any
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          2  of the events, including the one that took place a

          3  year ago, from the school or from the police sat

          4  down with you to discuss what the school would do to

          5  make you unafraid or to prevent the type of

          6  situation which you've described from happening

          7  again?  Has anyone sat down with you to discuss a

          8  plan to prevent these things?

          9                 THE INTERPRETER:  The answer is no.

         10                 MR. PARK:  They were just talking

         11  about mediation, like nothing else, just not even

         12  like a punish, just discussing how to make --

         13  they're just going to patrol around.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         16  very, very much.

         17                 THE INTERPRETER:  Madam Chair, I'm

         18  sorry, the student just called my attention that

         19  they have the fear, even though they were told by

         20  the police they'll be handcuffed, with blood all

         21  over his face, he'll be handcuffed.  If he pursue,

         22  if he's going to file the police report, he'll be

         23  arrested.

         24                 (Chairperson Moskowitz's question and

         25  Mr. Li's answer are translated.)
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Let me

          3  understand that.  So you're bleeding and the police

          4  officers tell you you're going to be handcuffed if

          5  you fill out a police report?

          6                 THE INTERPRETER:  When I was there

          7  there was blood all over my face.  The police

          8  officer asked me did I wish the suspect to be

          9  arrested.  I say yes.  Then I was told that if I am

         10  going -- if they are going to make an arrest of the

         11  suspect, my friend and I will be both arrested as

         12  well with handcuffs.  And I asked him why, we were

         13  only self- defense.  He say, yes, but I can't tell

         14  if you were self- defense.  I have to let a judge to

         15  make decision.  And I was dying to go to the

         16  hospital so I let it pass by.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         18  Is there anyone from DOE or the Mayor's Office here

         19  still? Unfortunately, this is somewhat typical.  The

         20  Department of Education has left, everyone from the

         21  Mayor's Office has left.  I assure you we will

         22  follow up with this and this is utterly

         23  unacceptable.  There are legal rights involved in

         24  the safety transfer, so if you could get us a copy

         25  of the denial, we will look into it.  And most of
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          2  all, thank you for coming forward.  I suspect that

          3  there are many other students who could not come

          4  forward and so it's very, very important that you

          5  were so frank with us and took time to be here with

          6  us today.  Thank you very, very much.

          7                 We're going to hear from our last

          8  witnesses who are going to have to be very, very

          9  brief.  Sara Kay from the New York City

         10  Comptroller's Office, Steve Kaufman from Assembly

         11  Sanders' office, the Chair of the State Education

         12  Committee and Dan Golub from Dick Gottfried's

         13  office.

         14                 Good morning.

         15                 DIRECTOR KAY:  Good morning.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  If I could

         17  ask you to depart from your testimony and just tell

         18  us what you think, that would be very helpful.

         19                 DIRECTOR KAY:  Fine.  I'm here on

         20  behalf of Comptroller Thompson to speak in support

         21  of Intro. 188.  In brief, the Comptroller believes

         22  that the passage of this bill will send a strong

         23  message of tolerance to all New Yorkers.  His

         24  concern is that in the appropriate challenge to

         25  attain high educational standards, we lose sight of
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          2  the social education that also takes place in the

          3  schools.  And he believes it's important to give the

          4  schools and the students and the staff in the

          5  schools the tools to ensure than an atmosphere of

          6  tolerance and respect is made available to

          7  everybody.  So I will close with that and you have

          8  the written statement to review at your leisure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         10  very, very much.  Dan Golub?

         11                 MR. GOLUB:  Golub.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 MR. GOLUB:  My name's Dan Golub from

         15  Assemblyman Richard Gottfried's office.  I know

         16  State Senator Tom Duane's office is actually here as

         17  well and submitted testimony for the record.

         18                 The testimony's been submitted for

         19  the record, but the Assemblyman, who's in Albany

         20  today, wanted me to thank you for having this

         21  hearing and thank Council Member Gerson and all the

         22  supporters of this bill.  As one of the co- sponsors

         23  of the statewide Dignity for All Students Act, to

         24  thank the Council for taking leadership on this and

         25  to assure you that there is a role for the Council
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          2  and the City to play, that we need not wait on us to

          3  act, though we're trying our best to do it, and to

          4  urge the City Council to pass this bill and to thank

          5  you for considering it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

          7  very much. We've been joined by a representative

          8  from Senator Duane's office -- I'm sorry.

          9                 MR. SOGOL:  Right, Brian Sogol from

         10  Senator Tom Duane's office.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         12  very much. We'll hear from Steve Kaufman and then

         13  you.

         14                 MR. KAUFMAN:  Thank you very much.

         15  I'm Steve Kaufman, I'm Chief of Staff for

         16  Assemblyman Steve Sanders, Chairman of the Education

         17  Committee in the Assembly.  I will be very brief.

         18  I've submitted written testimony.

         19                 As the Committee knows -- first of

         20  all, I want to commend Council Member Gerson, in

         21  particular, Speaker Miller and Chair Moskowitz, with

         22  whom we work very well, on all of your leadership on

         23  this issue.  We also want to thank GLSEN, without

         24  which I'm not sure there would have been any

         25  legislation at the State or City level.  We worked
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          2  with the statewide 200 plus Dignity for All Students

          3  Coalition.  We have passed the State Dignity for All

          4  Students Ace in the Assembly, three times, with very

          5  strong bipartisan support and we're very pleased to

          6  see the work that has been done parallel to the

          7  State effort here at the City Council.

          8                 I regret that today I cannot bring

          9  any good news with respect to negotiations that we

         10  were promised by the State Senate, by the Republican

         11  leadership.  After months and months of stalling,

         12  there is still no effort at having coalition, I'm

         13  sorry, a Conference Committee, no effort to

         14  negotiate differences between the Republican bill,

         15  which is inadequate, and so we think it's very

         16  important that the City Council has addressed this

         17  issue and we commend you for it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         19  And Brian Sogol.

         20                 MR. SOGOL:  Sogol, S- O- G- O- L.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  From Senator

         22  Duane's office.

         23                 MR. SOGOL:  Thank you.  Yes, I'll

         24  just be very brief.  I would just reiterate the

         25  previous comments that Senator Duane, being the
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          2  sponsor of the DASA bill in the State Senate,

          3  certainly appreciates both you, Council Member

          4  Moskowitz and Council Member Gerson, all your

          5  efforts on bringing this to the City Council and

          6  looking at precedence of past bills.

          7                 In terms of civil rights, especially,

          8  it's imperative that New York City pass this bill

          9  immediately. We are thrilled that the Department of

         10  Education seems to support our State bill.  But to

         11  reiterate, also, the things that Council Member

         12  Quinn brought to light earlier in the hearing.  We

         13  haven't heard from them.  We absolutely haven't, and

         14  we look forward to reaching out to them at this

         15  point ourselves to make sure that the most thorough

         16  communication that's possible can happen.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.  I

         18  have just one question I want to ask both you, as a

         19  representative of Senator Duane, but also the

         20  Assembly.  We got the impression this morning that

         21  there was a massive lobbying effort going on in

         22  Albany, that they were in contact with you, that

         23  they're fully supportive of this bill.  And I'd like

         24  to ask, just to clarify, I think you were saying,

         25  Mr. Sogol, that, has the Senator been called or
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          2  asked to have a meeting to strategize about how to

          3  get the Senate to pass its version of the DASA bill?

          4                 MR. SOGOL:  No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  And if

          6  those of you on the Assembly -- have there been any

          7  meetings or requests to strategize.  You know Albany

          8  very well and the challenges and so forth.  Have

          9  there been meetings or requests to strategize?

         10                 MR. SOGOL:  Let me say this.  There

         11  are many issues that Chairman Sanders is in public

         12  dispute with the City, the Mayor or the Department

         13  of Education on.  There are issues with which we can

         14  work with them very well.  I believe that on the

         15  Assembly side that the Department of Education has

         16  been very supportive.  The problem again, as I

         17  indicated, in the Legislature in Albany, it very

         18  much falls with Senator Bruno's office.  If Mayor

         19  Bloomberg wanted the DASA to pass, Mayor Bloomberg

         20  has tremendous influence with the City -- with both

         21  the Governor and with Senator Bruno. So I think the

         22  direction falls, with respect to my experience in

         23  the Assembly, I'm not speaking for any other

         24  legislator or with respect to other communications

         25  the people may wish to have, I cannot fault the
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          2  Department of Education on this.  I fault them on

          3  other things, not on this.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

          5  very, very much.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I just want

          7  to all of the witnesses who were not able to

          8  testify, first of all, I do need to make the point

          9  that the Chair does have an obligation to conclude

         10  and to vacate these premises by 1:00 because of

         11  scheduling.  There is another hearing coming in.

         12  However, one, those of you who have submitted

         13  written testimony, please be aware that they will be

         14  entered into the record.  Secondly, those of you who

         15  signed in on witness forms, your presence here will

         16  also be entered onto the record and that is

         17  extraordinarily important.  And thirdly, there will

         18  be a press conference at 1:15 here in City Hall,

         19  downstairs, and those of you who were not able to

         20  testify and would like to speak at that point, will

         21  be given that opportunity.  Beyond which I know the

         22  Committee and my office will be in touch with each

         23  of you to solicit information you have so that will

         24  then be conveyed to the Council before we take this

         25  bill up for a final vote.  This is a Committee
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          2  meeting.  It then goes to the full Council for its

          3  determination.  It's impossible to predict in

          4  advance when these hearings will conclude and how

          5  long they will take but, again, please note that

          6  your presence here, whether or not you testified, is

          7  extraordinarily important and makes the statement

          8  and is very, very appreciated and, most importantly,

          9  will help us continue and get this bill passed.

         10                 So, again, those of you who could

         11  join us downstairs in around ten minutes, you're

         12  more than invited, you're more than welcome and we

         13  appreciate that.  Thank you. And once again, thank

         14  you, Madam Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         16  very, very much for your testimony.  I appreciate

         17  it.  We're going to call this Committee hearing to a

         18  conclusion.  I see there are people already waiting

         19  for the next hearing which begins in this room at

         20  1:00.  Thank you very much.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 12:55 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT IARKOWSKI, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 26th day of April 2004.
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          8

          9            I, PAT IARKOWSKI, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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